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Our co-operative 
was created by 
farmers for farmers. 
When people come together 
with a common interest, more 
can be achieved. In our case, 
that means quality farm 
nutrients sold at affordable 
prices, by people who 
support farmers to get the 
best results from their own 
farm management systems.
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results dashboard 

Our Perfomance

revenue

rebates and 
dividends paid

trifr score

group  
equity ratio

customer net 
promoter score

SAFETY 
OBSERVATIONS

Our lower revenue this year 
reflects a reduced average sell price 
coupled with a decline in volumes.

In the eyes of our shareholders the health of the  
co-operative is measured by the rebate and dividends 
paid. Reduced earnings from our Kapuni ammonia 
urea plant contributed to a lower rebate for 2016.

TRIFR is a key indicator of our employee 
and contractor safety performance, 
measured by the number of lost time or 
medical treatment injuries per million 
man hours. The 50% decrease in the TRIFR 
for the year is testament to our focus on 
ensuring that our people go home safe to 
their families each day. Further reductions 
are targeted for 2017.
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The higher the equity percent the stronger the  
co-operative’s balance sheet. Our equity has grown 28% 
over the past five years, reaching its highest peak in 2016 
with the retirement of debt and the building of assets. 

We place our customers at the heart of our 
business. Customers continue to tell us how much 
they appreciate Ballance products and services 
through monthly surveys with promoters climbing 
to 43% and defectors dropping to 10% in 2016.

Undertaking safety observations offer 
a fresh set of eyes to help us avoid 
any kind of harm.
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GROSS TRADING 
RESULT

The strength of our balance sheet is the investment that shareholders 
have made into the co-operative. This measures the paid-up capital from 
shareholders and the accumulated retained earnings over the years. In 2016 
total equity declined less than the decline in our gross trading result, reflecting 
the net growth in assets during the year and strength of the balance sheet.

The result reflects the 
lower margins from 
less fertiliser tonnes 
on top of reduced 
earnings from our 
Kapunia ammonia urea 
plant. Overhead costs 
were well controlled 
during the year.
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When all of the different parts of our business are working together in 
harmony we deliver superior profit, people and planet outcomes.

We believe that a diverse range of perspectives and ideas is a 
key ingredient for our success. Gender representation is one 
indicator of how our diversity is tracking. The long term trend 
of increasing the percentage of females working at Ballance 
continues now representing 28% of staff in 2016. 

Import tonnes are sourced from NZ customs 
monthly and provide a lead indicator as to 
how the NZ fertiliser market is tracking. 
Our NZ manufactured urea and sulphur 
is included in these numbers. In 2016 we 
achieved the second highest year on record 
following a peak year in 2015.

Great people make a great company, and we place 
a strong emphasis on attracting and retaining the 
right people. In 2016 our engagement index  
dropped by 2 points – 3 points is considered 
meaningful so although our results have held our 
aim is to meaningfully increase engagement in 2017.

Having plants that are regulatory compliant 
is core to having a sustainable business. 
Resource breaches (air, water and technical) 
have reduced to just one during the year.  
Our aim is ZERO.

We are a large user 
of energy and very 
environmentally 
conscious recognising our 
responsibility to manage 
CO2 emissions. Lower 
emissions in 2016 reflected 
reduced production levels 
at our Kapuni ammonia 
urea plant.

The success of a 
primary sector 
co-operative can 
be measured by 
the net growth 
in shareholders. 
Net increase in 
shareholders for 2016 
was 65, or 7% over the 
past five years. 
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Sales volumes include all agricultural and industrial 
sales. This year volume declined by 8% on the back of 
a tough year particularly in the dairy sector.
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chairman 
and chief 

executive’s 
report

Our Year

“Our commitment really comes into 
its own when times are tough, and 
it’s been a year of mixed fortunes 
for farmers. We’ve backed our 
farmers by keeping prices as low 
as possible, operating with lower 
profit margins throughout the year. 
With grass the cheapest form of 
feed this was a logical step for us 
to support farm productivity and 
help offset weak commodity prices.”

Mark Wynne 
Chief Executive Officer 

David Peacocke 
Chairman

Revenue and  
trading result
Our co-operative’s $35 million 
gross trading result was down  
57 percent from $81 million  
last year. Revenues were  
$837 million compared to  
$893 million. Our balance sheet 
remains very strong as a result 
of continued financial discipline, 
reflected in an equity ratio of  
80.6 percent compared to last 
year’s 80.4 percent.

Rebate
We bought competitively and 
passed our savings on to our 
customers effectively giving 
them an early rebate, rounding 
this off with a distribution of 
87 percent of our gross trading 
result at year end. Our rebate 
payments began at the end of 
July, giving farmers welcome 
winter cashflow. 

This year’s rebate of $25 per 
tonne means an average  
gross return of $2,500 for a 
shareholder buying 100 tonnes. 

Our rebate was lower than the 
$55.83 achieved last year for 
several reasons. We kept prices 
and margins low all year, and 
tighter budgets on-farm meant 
lower demand for nutrients. 
However the main driver behind 
the result was an unforeseen 
trading loss at our Kapuni 
ammonia urea plant. 

Given tight budgets on-farm,  
we were unlikely to match our 
strong performance of previous 
years, but the Kapuni loss eroded 
what was a steady performance 
despite the difficult conditions. 
We hit a bump-in-the-road this 
year and we expect to deliver 
more returns for our shareholders 
again next year. We’ve had a long 
history of success.

Dividend decision
The Ballance rebate will now 
be the primary mechanism to 
reward shareholders.

Ballance will not pay a dividend 
for the 2016 financial year. 
This is a departure from 
historic practice and follows a 
board decision to reward only 
transacting shareholders through 
profit distributions. The policy 
will apply in future financial 
years and acknowledges the 
loyalty of the shareholders who 
do business with us. 

Non-transacting farmers will 
continue to benefit from increases 
in the value of our shares. The 
last revaluation was in 2013, and 
saw a 60 cent increase in the 
value of our shares to $8.10. 
Where a non-transacting 
shareholder has exited farming it 
is the directors’ expectation that 
the shareholder will apply for a 
surrender of their shares.
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Kapuni
Kapuni has contributed positively 
to our trading results for many 
years, supporting us to deliver 
superior rebates to our 
shareholders. This year we had 
budgeted for lower profit levels 
from Kapuni given the usual 
production losses from our 
two-yearly maintenance shut and 
low international urea prices. 
However, production was also hit 
by a catalytic converter breakdown 
which led to $13 million in lost 
profits and capital. Cost recovery 
options are being explored.  
The repair required specialised 
replacement parts, custom-made 
in Europe, with a lead time of nine 
months from manufacture to 
installation. This meant that our 
plant was running at around  
75 percent of normal production 
levels for most of the year. It could 
not be fixed any sooner.

The plant is 30 years old and 
operates well with regular 
maintenance, but it is less 
efficient than modern facilities. 
We have been seriously looking 
at options for a complete 
redevelopment of the plant  
– the only one of its kind in  
New Zealand – so that we can 
continue to provide a local, 
sustainable supply which is 
globally competitive. 

Following the recent withdrawal 
of a potential cornerstone partner 
for a rebuild of the plant and in 
light of declining global urea 
prices and surplus global supply, 
the likelihood of the project going 
ahead in the immediate term has 
decreased. We have written-off 
scoping costs of $13.3 million 

associated with a partial or full 
upgrade of the plant in our 
accounts this year.

The existing plant continues to 
be efficient and reliable, but like 
any technology, more modern 
plants are better all round. Our 
aim is to keep planning ahead 
and exploring options to ensure 
our ammonia urea plant remains 
a commercially viable part of 
business which creates value for 
our shareholders.

Our $21.5 million Kapuni 
turnaround, which involves up to 
500 workers on site, went beyond 
its scheduled four weeks as a 
result of further work required on 
the ammonia plant. This delayed 
completion of the shut by two 
weeks. The plant is now back up 
and running at full capacity.  
A total of 1967 safety observations 
were carried out onsite during the 
shut alone, and site employees 
achieved a full working year with 
no lost time injuries.

Sales
Total sales volumes across 
fertiliser, industrial urea,  
animal nutrition and industrials 
were down eight percent at  
1.62 million tonnes compared to 
1.75 million tonnes the prior year. 
Tough market conditions, 
particularly in the dairy sector, 
contributed to lower fertiliser 
sales volumes.

Industrial sales volumes rose, 
with growth in hydrofluosilicic 
acid (HFA) volumes and sales of 
our GoClear exhaust additive 
system. The additive, which 
reduces nitrogen oxide emissions 
from diesel engines, is 
increasingly being used by  

many truck, bus and heavy 
machinery operators.

Nitrogen sales remained strong 
as dairy farmers looked to make 
the most of home-grown feed. 
SustaiN is becoming the preferred 
nitrogen source for our customers, 
with half switching to the treated 
urea product to retain more 
nitrogen in the soil, grow more 
grass, and save money.

Where weather conditions were 
favourable, demand for phosphate 
and nitrogen in sheep and beef 
country continued to grow as 
farmers looked to make the most 
of steady returns. 

In a year where dairy farmers 
with higher Olsen P levels were 
looking to draw from these 
to maintain production, our 
PhaSedN and PhaSedN Quick 
Start products came into their 
own, offering a great option to 
boost pasture covers ahead of 
autumn with nitrogen, while also 
fulfilling a good part of annual 
sulphur requirements.

Pricing
We were able to pass savings  
on to our customers due to  
weak international nitrogen 
prices on the back of high global 
inventories and increased 
Chinese supply capacity.

The decline in the value of the 
New Zealand dollar put us under 
some pricing pressure, but we 
made the call to keep prices low 
to support farmers by absorbing 
as much of this volatility as 
possible. Our foreign exchange 
approach helped us to offset the 
weaker New Zealand dollar. 

We keep a close watch on 
both international commodity 
prices and foreign exchange 
so our customers have access 
to competitively priced farm 
nutrient essentials.

Superphosphate plants
Our superphosphate 
manufacturing plants at  
Mount Maunganui in the  
North Island and Awarua in the 
South produce approximately 
600,000 tonnes of fertiliser each 
year to meet nationwide demand. 
Manufacturing processes are 
continuously revised to ensure 
optimum efficiencies are achieved.

At our Mount Maunganui site 
reviews of downtime reports 
identified bottlenecks which, 
when cleared, enabled average 
production gains of more than 
four hours a week or 160 tonnes. 
We have also trialled rock blends 
with the aim of achieving the best 
possible physical and chemical 
properties in our products at the 
most competitive price.

In June we breached our 
air consent for our Mount 
Maunganui manufacturing plant 
when we temporarily exceeded 
our permitted fluoride emissions. 
The exceedance occurred 
during a plant restart and was 
caused by blocked water spray 
nozzles which work to remove 
fluoride from our process. We 
have reviewed our procedures, 
systems and training to avoid 
any future incidents.

Our Awarua site, just south of 
Invercargill, manufactures for  
the South Island. 

The plant’s annual maintenance 
turnaround went smoothly this 
year, supporting our ability to 
meet with the ISO 14001:2004 
and 9001:2008 international 
environmental and quality 
management systems standards. 

As with all labour-intensive 
maintenance programmes, the 
Awarua turnaround benefits 
the local economy through 
contracted work. Investments 
in site infrastructure this year 
included a caustic dosing 
system to reduce sulphur 
dioxide emissions, roofing 
replacement, paving extensions 
and drainage improvements. The 
site completed the year with no 
resource consent breaches.

Sulphur dioxide
The Bay of Plenty Regional 
Council has been using an air 
quality trailer to monitor sulphur 
dioxide (SO2) levels at Whareroa 
Marae and the harbour bridge 
marina, next door to our  
Mount Maunganui site.

The trailer was put in place 
late 2015 when our neighbours 
raised concerns about air quality 
and odours from local industry. 
Monitoring results have recorded 
levels above the upper National 
Environmental Standard (NES) 
for air quality on two occasions. 
There has been a further six 
instances where the lower NES 
level was exceeded. 

We were surprised and 
concerned to hear of the 
exceedances, as our plant has 
continued to operate within our 
resource consent and our own 
site monitoring has not shown 
anything out of the ordinary.

We’re not the sole cause of 
this problem, but we take 
our part to play seriously. 
Following notification of the 
last exceedance in March, we 
immediately slowed production 
to reduce onsite emissions 
by more than half while we 
investigated the issue.

We set up a team of internal and 
external experts to identify the 
best ways to further lower our 
SO2 emissions long term, and 
we are putting in place our own 
extra air monitoring.

In July 2016 we installed a  
new caesium catalyst which is 
contributing to reduced SO2 
emissions at the site. The board 
also approved a further 
investment of $8.5 million 
covering the installation of a new 
converter during the July 2017 
turnaround to further reduce SO2 
levels. This is the earliest we can 
complete this work due to the time 
required to source materials and 
build the convertor. 

We are confident that with the 
changes we’ve made to our 
operations, we will do our part 
to keep within the NES. The 
standard is set with a protective 
margin to keep even the most 
vulnerable members of our 
community safe, and that’s our 
aim too.
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Supply chain
We invested $6.5 million in  
our distribution network to 
support improved customer 
service levels and product 
quality, with a particular 
emphasis on faster turnaround 
of orders and improving mixing 
and blending services. 

Our new mobile screening plant 
installed at Maru Street this year 
is already delivering some big 
quality improvements for high 
analysis fertilisers.

We invested on the back of 
strong demand and growth in 
Canterbury with a new bag store 
in Rolleston, and transitioned 
Anama from a consignment store 
to a service centre, expanding the 
site and installing a new hopper. 

Our mobile SustaiN 
manufacturing plant based at 
our Timaru Hub was designed 
by our team to meet growing 
demand for this product, which 
has historically been produced 
in the North Island. Production 
closer to Southern farm gates 
means better product quality 
due to less handling, as well as 
improved ability to match local 
supply with demand.

Other work included an elevator 
upgrade at our Pungarehu 
store and an additional hopper 
at Fielding, as well as seismic 
strengthening throughout  
the network. 

We continue to build on work 
completed at Te Kuiti and  
Te Awamutu to ensure these 
upgrades deliver to requirements.

Our new service centre at Huntly 
is nearing completion, and is set 
to open in spring 2016. Situated 
in an improved location, the 
purpose-built store is expected 
to deliver safety, environmental, 
product quality and customer 
service benefits.

SealesWinslow
Animal nutrition subsidiary 
SealesWinslow has grown 
market share and volume in a 
market which has declined on 
the back of low dairy prices. 
The business holds a leadership 
position in calf feed, and is 
now the preferred supplier of 
calf nutrition products to the 
national network of FarmSource 
retail stores. The new agreement 
formally came into effect from  
1 July 2016, and covers supply of 
SealesWinslow-branded calf feed 
and the manufacturing of the 
Country Mile house brands range 
of products.

This year SealesWinslow attained 
FeedSafeNZ accreditation across 
all three mills, recognising the high 
quality of the animal feed products 
we make. FeedSafeNZ is a quality 
stamp from the New Zealand 
Feed Manufacturers Association, 
and aims to give farmers an 
additional level of certainty that 
products are safe and have been 
produced in a manufacturing 
plant which is regularly audited.

SealesWinslow continues to 
make good progress with product 
innovation, which included the 
release of a specially formulated 
fodder beet block to help overcome 
phosphorus deficiency and 
balance other minerals that are 
lacking in cattle on a fodder beet 
diet. We are well placed to make 
the most of the dairy recovery. 

Super Air
Super Air’s reorganisation 
was completed this year. We 
now have the most efficient 
combination of bases, aircraft 
and pilots to meet customer 
demand. Two aircraft are 
equipped with our patented 
SpreadSmart™ technology which 
enables us to best match desired 
productivity gains with fertiliser 
applications, especially in hill 
country areas. The system uses 
farm mapping to apply fertiliser 
exactly where it is needed and to 
avoid environmentally sensitive 
areas on farms such as wetlands. 

Super Air achieved a full year  
of operation without lost 
time injuries.

Advice
Upskilling our 100-strong field 
team to build their capability 
to deliver the best possible 
advice is a core priority for us. 
We have been looking at the 
most effective way to transfer 
knowledge to our team and have 
invested in our digital capability 
to offer e-learning and science 

foundation training to our 
sales team. Part of this learning 
builds on better farm systems 
understanding to help our team 
shape the types of conversations 
we have with our customers to 
unlock their farm potential.

Giving farmers confidence they 
are getting the right advice 
is also important, we put 16 
members of our sales team 
through Certified Nutrient 
Advisor Training this year, 
bringing our total number to 40.

We have invested in a new 
customer relationship 
management system to drive 
greater consistency and 
continuity of the relationship our 
customers have with Ballance.

The ultimate aim is a better 
customer experience which 
comes from understanding each 
unique farm and farmer. This is 
a stepping stone to delivering 
service through a single 
digital platform, providing our 
customers with instant access to 
all of their Ballance information.

We have been further 
strengthening our partnership 
with our retail merchants in 
recognition and respect of the 
relationship we share with 
our customers with the aim 
of providing a more seamless 
experience for them.

As land intensification builds 
and farmers look to diversify 
their interests there is a 
growing demand for specialist 
horticultural support. We 
appointed a new horticulture 
business manager during the 
year in acknowledgement of the 
specialist support this sector 
requires from their nutrient 
specialists to get maximum value 
from their orchards and crops.

Technology
We are committed to making it 
easier for our customers to do 
business with us by developing 
digital solutions which are 
mobile, intuitive, robust and 
valuable. Equally as important 
is supporting knowledge sharing 
and decision making by providing 
solutions to transform data into 
accessible, useful information.

Ag Hub has performed to 
expectations, however since we 
purchased Ag Hub in 2012 the 
online precision farming world 
has grown in leaps and bounds. 
Digital tools have become the 
norm and, as always, our farmers 
are at the forefront of change. 

We’re continuing to build on and 
invest in our Ag Hub platform as 
we move closer to creating a one-
stop fully-integrated experience 
for all our Ballance customers.

Building for the future
Farmers want to see us bring 
them value beyond the rebate. 

We are making the best use 
of our knowledge of farming 
systems to help unlock farm 
potential and increase profits on 
farm. That includes continuing 
to build a strong portfolio 
of products best suited to 
local farming systems to lift 
production, and minimising 
nutrient losses through precision 
farming tools.

“This combination of competitive 
price, expert advice, smart products 
and precision technology ensures 
a sustainable co-op which can 
partner with our shareholders and 
customers over the long term.”
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“Thousands of people drive 
past our site every day.  
We were delighted to invite 
them in and show them how 
an insoluble rock can turn 
into superphosphate which 
supports soil fertility on 
farms, orchards and market 
gardens around the country.”

Tauranga locals and visitors 
had the chance to meet a real 
rock star and donate to the 
Trustpower TECT Rescue 
Helicopter, with a visit to our 
superphosphate plant as part 
of Port of Tauranga’s summer 
tours in January.

“The reality is that we  
operate a superphosphate 
manufacturing plant in the 
middle of Tauranga city.

“We play a valuable role in  
this community through 
employment, we are caretakers 
of our local environment, and 

we want to be good neighbours,” 
said Acting Mount Maunganui 
Site Operations Manager  
Daryl Richardson.

The rock tour proved popular, 
and all 25 tours over ten days 
were sold out.

sold out 
rock tour

Our Stories
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South Island farmers now have 
direct access to one of Ballance’s 
most popular products, PhaSedN.

In partnership with Te Poi 
Manufacturing Limited, we 
have developed a specialist 
manufacturing plant within  
our Timaru Hub operation.

General Manager Supply Chain 
Greg Delaney, says investment in 
the manufacturing plant supports 
South Island farmers who want 
local supply of the product.

“There has been strong demand 
for PhaSedN throughout the 

country. The South Island has 
experienced significant growth 
in dairying in recent years, and it 
also has a deep sheep and  
beef heritage.”

An added bonus of the local 
plant has been improved product 
quality resulting from less 
handling during transport. 

We have seen increased interest 
for the product more recently 
from farmers reviewing their 
annual fertiliser programme in 
light of budget constraints. This 
is because PhaSedN offers a 
combined nitrogen and sulphur 

application and the flexibility 
to adjust the timing of other 
base nutrient applications of 
phosphate and potash.

The new manufacturing facility 
is expected to initially produce 
around 10,000 tonnes annually, 
with capacity to build production 
as demand grows. 

Ballance Timaru has been part of 
the local rural community for the 
past 17 years, and permanently 
employs 8 people.

Made local, 
for locals

Our Stories

“Our customers like PhaSedN 
because the unique formulation 
provides a great option to 
boost pasture covers ahead of 
autumn with nitrogen, while 
also fulfilling a good part of 
annual sulphur requirements.”
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putting your 
heart and soul 

into it
The last twelve months in 
Ballance have been quite a 
journey. With a refreshed 
leadership team at the helm  
and a renewed purpose, we’ve 
taken a good hard look at 
ourselves and how we’ll meet  
the needs of our customers 
today and in the future. 

Ultimately, we’re here to create 
the best soil and feed on earth, 
together. Offering smart products, 
expert advice and innovative 

technology that helps our 
farmers and growers make the 
best choices for their farm 
business and for the environment. 

As our leadership team embarked 
on this journey to map out our 
future, they wanted to know our 
people weren’t just willing to 
walk alongside them but were 
ready to play their part. We knew 
why Ballance was here, but what 
did our people see as their role in 
helping to create our future?

During dozens of workshops 
from Whangarei to Invercargill 
we asked our people to dig deep, 
to do some soul searching and 
tell us their ‘why’ – why they 
were here and the bigger purpose 
behind what they do every day to 
help deliver on our promise. 

Their response wasn’t just  
heart-warming, it was inspiring.

Our Stories

“We’re excited about our vision for 
the future and where we’re heading. 
But no vision is complete without 
the people who bring it to life.”
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Calving is the busiest time on a 
dairy farm. Dairy farming women 
are in the thick of it, juggling the 
wellbeing of cows, calves, farm 
workers and their own families 
in one hectic push. What we’ve 
brought to the table to support 
Dairy Women’s Network over the 
past two seasons is two extra 
pairs of hands. 

One pair belongs to 
SealesWinslow Nutrition and 
Quality Manager Wendy Morgan 
and the other to celebrity chef 
Michael Van de Elzen. 

Together with DWN they get  
farming families through calving 
in peak condition.

Wendy’s calving workshops, 
Facebook chat sessions and 
all round advice help dairying 
women to set up for a great 
calving season, ensure calves 
get off to a good start and get 
replacement heifers ready for 
a productive career, thanks to 
optimal care and nutrition. 

The 15 workshops held in the 
2015 calving season were a  
major hit, creating demand  
for a further 19 in 2016.  
More than 400 people attended 
the workshops in person, and 
hundreds more joined the 
conversation on Facebook.

Michael meanwhile rounds 
out the support with flavour-
rich, time-poor recipes to keep 
families and farm workers 
fuelled, backed up by DWN’s own 
recipe swaps. He supplements 
Wendy’s animal nutrition advice 
with great nutrition ideas which  
can be easily used at peak times 
on the farm.

This is an excellent example of 
how we create value through 
partnering. Dairy Women’s 
Network is a wonderful 
organisation devoted to providing 
opportunities for dairy women  
to improve their skills and 
leadership. We can contribute, 
and practical programmes like 
the calving workshops are a great 
place to start.

lending A 
hand where  

it counts

Our Stories

“Sponsorship is not 
just about rolling 
up with a cheque; 
it’s about making 
a real difference 
through rolling up 
our sleeves as well.”
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“For Richard and Dianne Kidd, 
achieving their vision for a high 
producing farm that considers 
the wellbeing of both stock and 
the environment is the product 
of clever-thinking, dedication 
and knowing where to turn for 
expert advice when needed.”

Being crowned national winners 
of the 2016 Ballance Farm 
Environment Awards has been 
the culmination of a 30 year 
journey for Hellensville farmers 
Richard and Dianne Kidd. 

“Being mindful of the impact of 
our farming operations on the 
environment doesn’t detract from 
the overall productivity,” says 
Richard. “Instead it prompts you 
to consider all of the decisions 
you make and drives efficiency 
throughout the farm system, 
helping to increase production.”

Among the sustainable initiatives 
on the 376 ha sheep, beef and 
forestry unit, Whenuanui 
Farm, are fenced off gullies and 

waterways; biodiversity corridors 
planted with native species; large 
areas of raupo sediment traps to 
capture nutrients; trees and flax 
planted along fence lines; as well 
as shade, shelter and reticulated 
water available to livestock in 
every paddock.

To get the most out of their 
sustainably designed farming 
system Richard and Dianne tap 
into the soil nutrient expertise 
of Ballance and credit their local 
Nutrient Specialist, Ross Neal, as 
being “a great asset.”

“In working with the Kidds we’ve 
tested and analysed the various 
soil types on their farm to find 
the right product and nutrient 

amounts required to maximise 
output,” says Ross.

“A good example of this is on 
the productive peat flats which 
have shown high Olsen P levels 
historically. This autumn we have 
gone with PhaSedN, a nitrogen 
and elemental sulphur product, 
which has generated excellent 
pasture growth.

“Richard and Dianne have  
put an impressive amount of 
work into designing a farm 
system that lowers stress on  
the stock, raises productivity  
and protects the environment  
for future generations.”

a winning 
team

Our Stories
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Our Stories

One of the things we do to keep 
safety at the forefront of our 
minds is focus on TRIFR –  
Total Recordable Injury 
Frequency Rate. 

TRIFR is a simple way for us to 
compare the average number 
of injuries happening for every 
million hours worked in our 
workplace and benchmark with 
other similar organisations. It’s 
a way to compare apples with 
apples, and allows us to set real, 
achievable safety targets for  
our people. 

A real focus on ensuring our 
people go home safe to their 
families each day paid off this 
year, with a 50 percent decrease 
in our TRIFR in 2016. 

Each division of the business has 
a tailored safety plan in place that 
addresses specific risks associated 
with their area of work.

In May 2014 our Distribution 
team’s TRIFR score was 35, and 
the industry average was sitting 
at 25. Over the last two years the 
team turned up the dial on safety, 
and their efforts have been well 
rewarded. As of May 2016 the 
team achieved a phenomenal 
TRIFR score of 3. 

A large part of their success has 
been a strong focus on safety 
observations – a physical tour 
and visible check of a site to 
identify any at risk behaviours 
that could lead to harm, and what 
could be done to prevent it.

Observations are a great way to 
create transparency and change 
workplace behaviour around 
safety. And they’re simple.

Richard Flynn, our Pukekohe 
Service Centre Manager, 
explains, “Observations get  
done because they’re easy.  
You just observe what’s right  
in front of you at any time and 
have an open discussion with 
those involved.

 “Another reason they work so 
well is because it’s not just our 
own team doing them. Visitors to 
our site will often do a safety 
observation, and with that they 
bring a fresh set of eyes and a new 
way of looking at what we do”. 

keeping  
an eye  

on safety

“At Ballance we 
have a mantra that 
we all live and work 
by; Safety Always.” 
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Getting the best from your farm

Our Products

Farming will always have its 
ups and downs. We aim to offer 
you products that help you get 
the very best from your farm, 
whatever the weather or the 
market throws at you. In the 
past few years we’ve introduced 
you to a world of smart new 
products. Are you making the 
most of them on your farm yet? 

sustain
Introduced to Ballance 
customers in 2011 SustaiN is 
a unique nitrogen fertiliser 
containing AGROTAIN® nitrogen 
stabiliser, a coating that acts 
to reduce nitrogen loss from 
ammonia volatilisation.

How does it work?

When applied, it blocks urease 
enzyme activity. By doing this, 
the conversion rate of urea to 
ammonium is reduced, enabling 
more nitrogen to be available for 
plant uptake and production.

Who should use it?

SustaiN can be used year 
round for nitrogen application 
to pasture and crop. It is the 
preference to urea unless  
5-10 mm of rainfall can be 
guaranteed within 8 hours of 
application. It is ideal for post-
emergence crop application 
where higher rates of nitrogen 
are used.

Why is it unique?

Studies by AgResearch have 
shown that in pastoral conditions, 
using SustaiN instead of urea 
will result in an average 50% 
reduction in volatilisation losses. 
This is consistent with 20 years’ 
worth of international research, 
supported by over 1,000 field 
trials and proven performance on 
New Zealand farms and in over 
70 countries worldwide.

Calculate your SustaiN Gain

Visit www.sustaingain.co.nz to 
calculate the financial gains of 
having more nitrogen available.

phasedn
PhaSedN is a unique  
formulation containing SustaiN, 
fine elemental sulphur and lime 
in one granule.

How does it work?

Applied in autumn PhaSedN 
helps grow more pasture on the 
shoulders of the season.  

With more nitrogen available the 
SustaiN provides an immediate 
pasture boost, while the fine 
elemental sulphur is retained  
in the soil and slowly releases to 
support early spring growth. 

Who should use it?

Use on dairy and sheep and beef 
farms where there is a need for 
autumn nitrogen and sulphur. 
It is ideal where there is a high 
annual rainfall or high risk of 
sulphur loss. 

PhaSedN Quick Start, containing 
both plant available sulphate 
of ammonia and slow release 
elemental sulphur, is a good 
choice for both immediate and 
longer term pasture growth.

Why is it unique?

PhaSedN contains a high 
proportion of fine elemental 
sulphur, which delivers a more 
rapid and efficient supply of 
sulphate sulphur to plants 
compared to other elemental 
sulphur products.

Creating products that deliver unique value for our 
customers is what gets us out of bed in the morning. 

Gains to 
be made

Mark and Shay Ingram 338 hectaresTokoroa 670 Cows

By applying SustaiN on their farm throughout the year Mark and Shay have enjoyed 
the benefits of growing more grass, and the wider application window means 
they can put it on when it suits them. This is because SustaiN reduces ammonia 
volatilisation losses, leaving more nitrogen available for plant uptake.

*Based on a $3.90 payout ($/kg MS). 

MY SUSTAIN GAIN

$2,075
NET BENEFIT*

AGROTAIN® is a registered trademark of Koch Agronomic Services.

TODAY’S PASTURE 
GROWTH WARNING

WE’VE BEEN TOLD PHASEDN  
QUICK START IS SO GOOD IT SHOULD  

COME WITH A WARNING.

spreadsmart 

SpreadSmart™ is the future 
of aerial topdressing. It offers 
all the benefits of fixed wing 
topdressing, like economic 
efficiency and speed, with the 
accuracy and environmental 
protection of modern day 
precision agriculture systems.

How does it work?

SpreadSmart™ combines GPS 
guidance and tracking systems, 
with computerised farm mapping 
to automate the opening and 
closing the fertiliser hopper at 
the right time, in the right place, 
at the right rate. 

Who should use it?

SpreadSmart™ is suitable 
for anyone who uses aerial 
topdressing and is looking for 
ways to lift productivity and take 
care of the environment.

Why is it unique?

SpreadSmart™ is available now, 
using proven soil testing methods 
and application strategies 
underpinned by science.

n-guru 
N-Guru™ is a decision support 
software tool designed to 
improve the efficiency of 
nitrogen use on New Zealand 
pastoral farms.

How does it work?

Used in conjunction with soil 
testing, N-Guru™ enables 
Ballance to interpret the results 
to identify which areas of a farm 
will produce a greater response 
to nitrogen than others. 

Who should use it?

Anyone looking to apply their 
nitrogen fertiliser in the right 
place in the right amounts at the 
right time for minimal nutrient 
loss and maximum production. 
It’s a good tool to guide how  
to allocate the nitrogen budget 
for a season. 

Why is it unique?

N-Guru™ enables Ballance to 
predict the pasture response 
to the nutrients accurately 
and impartially and tailor 
advice accordingly. It’s this 
interpretation ability which 
is novel, making the product 
exclusive to us.

fodder beet block
The Cattle Fodder Beet Block 
is a molasses block specifically 
formulated to help overcome 
phosphorus deficiency and 
balance other minerals like 
magnesium and essential trace 
elements that are lacking in 
cattle on a fodder beet diet.

How does it work?

The blocks are placed at the crop 
face under the fence and in front 
of the cows.

Who should use it?

Any farmer winter feeding 
fodder beet to their cattle to 
ensure they maximise their 
investment in fodder beet and 
support their cattle’s dietary 
requirements.

Why is it unique?

The Cattle Fodder Beet Block 
is the first of its kind on the 
market, convenient to use, and 
cattle like the taste. Traditionally 
farmers have dusted their crop 
with dicalcium phosphate or have 
used a slurry of the compound 
on silage or straw. However, these 
practices can be dusty, time-
consuming and wasteful, and the 
intake is variable.

SpreadSmart™ and N-GuruTM  

have been developed  
through Ballance’s Primary 
Growth Partnership. View  
our annual report online for 
more information.
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wanganui  
animal feed MILL

kapuni AMMONIA  
urea plant

morrinsville 
animal feed MILL

awarua  
superphosphate 
plant

ashburton  
animal feed MILL

mt maunganui 
superphosphate 
plant

From our core business of 
fertiliser manufacturing, supply, 
sales and advice, we have grown 
to offer farmers a full range of 
science-backed nutrient products 
and services. 

This enables us to help farmers 
achieve soil and animal nutrition 
and productivity with a minimal 
environmental footprint.

Our agri-nutrient advice 
is complemented by web-
based farm systems software, 
supporting farmers to  
capture and analyse a wealth  
of information for smarter  
decision making. We cover 
the country, with one-on-
one specialist advice on-farm 
backed up by a network of rural 
merchant supply partners, 
service centres, consignment 
stores, manufacturing sites  
and our own agricultural  
aviation services.

As well as supporting  
New Zealand farmers,  
Ballance also supplies  
products to a range  
of industrial businesses.

Ballance is a New Zealand farmer owned co-operative that helps its 
customers to farm more productively, profitably and sustainably.

Our Structure

Ag Hub is an online farm management 
system, sold by Ballance, that enables farmers 

to capture, store and analyse information 
across farm management systems, by linking 

data to GPS maps of farm properties.

Operating nationally, SealesWinslow is a 
recognised leader in the production of high 
performance compound animal feeds and 

feed additives.

Super Air is one of New Zealand’s leading 
agricultural aviation companies providing 

farmers in the North Island with aerial 
topdressing services.

96 Consignment 
Stores

38 Service  
Centres

4 Hub  
Stores

Our Numbers
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income statement
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2016. BALLANCE AGRI-NUTRIENTS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES.

Group Group Parent Parent

Note
2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Revenue 2  837,462  892,795  789,867  835,796 

Cost of sales  (624,875)  (621,268)  (570,307)  (596,606)

Gross profit  212,587  271,527  219,560  239,190 

Other operating income 2  1,964  3,460  956  18,335 

Sales, marketing and distribution expenses  (126,209)  (138,028)  (119,864)  (120,604)

Administrative expenses  (50,109)  (51,738)  (40,107)  (41,978)

Other operating expenses 3  (3,147)  (4,255)  (13,302)  (19,358)

 (177,501)  (190,561)  (172,317)  (163,605)

Gross trading result  35,086  80,966  47,243  75,585 

Net financing costs 6  (2,402)  (4,433)  (270)  (2,716)

Impairment write (down) up 7(a)  (2,700)  (18,688)  1,000  (18,688)

Revamp urea plant project costs 7(b)  (13,321)  –  –  – 

Profit before rebate, tax and equity accounted income  16,663  57,845  47,973  54,181 

Rebates to shareholders 8  (30,433)  (72,407)  (30,433)  (72,407)

(Loss) profit before tax and equity accounted income  (13,770)  (14,562)  17,540  (18,226)

Share of profit (loss) from equity accounted investments 13(b)  (25)  21  –  – 

(Loss) profit before tax  (13,795)  (14,541)  17,540  (18,226)

Income tax (expense) benefit 9  (349)  3,471  (3,583)  4,129 

(Loss) profit for the year  (14,144)  (11,070)  13,957  (14,097)

The accompanying Notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements

Statement of comprehensive income
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2016. BALLANCE AGRI-NUTRIENTS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES.

Group Group Parent Parent

Note
2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

(Loss) profit after tax for the year  (14,144)  (11,070)  13,957  (14,097)

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit and loss in 
subsequent periods:

Effective portion of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges  8,545  30,018  8,545  30,018 

Amount removed from equity, in relation to cash flow hedges, and included 
in initial cost of inventory on hand during the period  (26,099)  (7,550)  (26,099)  (7,550)

Income tax on items recognised directly in other comprehensive income 9  4,915  (6,291)  4,915  (6,291)

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax  (12,639)  16,177  (12,639)  16,177 

Total comprehensive income for the year  (26,783)  5,107  1,318  2,080 

The accompanying Notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements
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Statement of changes in equity – GROUP
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2016. BALLANCE AGRI-NUTRIENTS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES.

Group Note

Fully paid 
ordinary 

shares 
$000

Share 
allotment 

reserve
$000

Hedging 
reserve

$000

Retained 
earnings

$000

Total  
equity
$000

22(a) 22(b) 22(b)

Balance at 1 June 2014  146,007  23,610  (5,100)  256,093  420,610 

Loss for the year  –  –  –  (11,070)  (11,070)

Net change in the fair value of cash flow hedges  –  –  22,469  –  22,469 

Income tax relating to components of other  
comprehensive income  –  –  (6,291)  –  (6,291)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  –  –  16,178  –  16,178 

Shares issued  388  –  –  –  388 

Shares provided / issued in lieu of rebate  23,543  (1,315)  –  –  22,228 

Shares repurchased  (9,135)  –  –  –  (9,135)

Dividends paid 8  –  –  –  (3,770)  (3,770)

Total transactions with owners  14,796  (1,315)  –  (3,770)  9,712 

Balance at 31 May 2015  160,803  22,295  11,078  241,253  435,429 

Balance at 1 June 2015  160,803  22,295  11,078  241,253  435,429 

Loss for the year  –  –  –  (14,144)  (14,144)

Net change in the fair value of cash flow hedges  –  –  (17,554)  –  (17,554)

Income tax relating to components of other  
comprehensive income  –  –  4,915  –  4,915 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  –  –  (12,639)  –  (12,639)

Shares issued  290  –  –  –  290 

Shares provided / issued in lieu of rebate  22,294  (11,758)  –  –  10,536 

Shares repurchased  (8,973)  –  –  –  (8,973)

Dividends paid 8  –  –  –  (3,947)  (3,947)

Total transactions with owners  13,611  (11,758)  –  (3,947)  (2,094)

Balance at 31 May 2016  174,414  10,537  (1,561)  223,162  406,552 

The accompanying Notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements

Statement of changes in equity – parent
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2016. BALLANCE AGRI-NUTRIENTS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES.

Parent Note

Fully paid 
ordinary 

shares 
$000

Share 
allotment 

reserve
$000

Hedging 
reserve

$000

Retained 
earnings

$000

Total  
equity
$000

22(a) 22(b) 22(b)

Balance at 1 June 2014  146,007  23,613  (5,100)  204,614  369,134 

Loss for the year  –  –  –  (14,097)  (14,097)

Net change in the fair value of cash flow hedges  –  –  22,468  –  22,468 

Income tax relating to components of other  
comprehensive income  –  –  (6,291)  –  (6,291)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  –  –  16,177  –  16,177 

Shares issued  388  –  –  –  388 

Shares provided / issued in lieu of rebate  23,543  (1,315)  –  –  22,228 

Shares repurchased  (9,135)  –  –  –  (9,135)

Dividends paid 8  –  –  –  (3,770)  (3,770)

Total transactions with owners  14,796  (1,315)  –  (3,770)  9,711 

Balance at 31 May 2015  160,803  22,298  11,077  186,747  380,925 

Balance at 1 June 2015  160,803  22,298  11,077  186,747  380,925 

Profit for the year  –  –  –  13,957  13,957 

Net change in the fair value of cash flow hedges  –  –  (17,554)  –  (17,554)

Income tax relating to components of other  
comprehensive income  –  –  4,915  –  4,915 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  –  –  (12,639)  –  (12,639)

Shares issued  290  –  –  –  290 

Shares provided / issued in lieu of rebate  22,294  (11,754)  –  –  10,540 

Shares repurchased  (8,973)  –  –  –  (8,973)

Dividends paid 8  –  –  –  (3,947)  (3,947)

Total transactions with owners  13,611  (11,754)  –  (3,947)  (2,090)

Balance at 31 May 2016  174,414  10,544  (1,561)  196,757  380,153 

The accompanying Notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements
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balance sheet
AS AT 31 MAY 2016. BALLANCE AGRI-NUTRIENTS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES.

Group Group Parent Parent

Note
2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Shareholders’ equity

Paid-in capital  174,414  160,803  174,414  160,803 

Retained earnings and other reserves  232,138  274,626  205,739  220,122 

Total equity  406,552  435,429  380,153  380,925 

Current liabilities

Bank revolving cash advance facility 18 24,000  – 24,000  – 

Trade and other payables 17  49,762  52,850  43,743  45,887 

Derivative liabilities  3,086  –  3,086  – 

Inter-company funding 21  –  –  2,273  11,530 

Rebate payable 8  19,680  49,956  19,680  49,956 

Total current liabilities 96,528  102,806 92,782  107,373 

Non-current liabilities

Provisions 19  1,279  1,233  791  796 

Deferred tax liabilities 10  –  2,406  –  7,386 

Total non-current liabilities  1,279  3,639  791  8,182 

Total liabilities 97,807  106,445 93,573  115,555 

Total equity and liabilities 504,359  541,874 473,726  496,480 

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8,935  18,679 8,316  17,962 

Trade and other receivables 11  66,475  86,123  61,331  81,709 

Inter-company funding 21  –  –  40,894  13,257 

Inventories 12  151,777  165,518  138,891  152,987 

Derivative assets  913  15,511  913  15,511 

Income tax receivable  2,481  2,268  2,569  2,266 

Total current assets 230,581  288,099 252,914  283,692 

Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries 13(a)  –  –  31,603  31,603 

Investments in equity accounted investees 13(b)  127  153  35  35 

Loans to subsidiaries 21  –  –  30,733  30,733 

Deferred tax assets 10  2,149  –  695  – 

Property, plant and equipment 14 254,485  241,118 145,115  143,671 

Intangible assets 16 17,017  12,504 12,631  6,746 

Total non-current assets  273,778  253,775  220,812  212,788 

Total assets 504,359  541,874 473,726  496,480 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors: DE Peacocke EJ Harvey

Director
11 August 2016

Director
11 August 2016

The accompanying Notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements

Statement of cash flows
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2016. BALLANCE AGRI-NUTRIENTS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES.

Group Group Parent Parent

Note
2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers  861,123  932,678  812,913  872,955 

Cash paid to suppliers and employees  (773,805)  (819,432)  (725,733)  (782,287)

Interest received  643  1,504  2,707  3,842 

Dividends received  17  30  17  30 

Insurance proceeds  85  1,415  85  1,415 

Government grants  568  652  568  652 

Rebate to shareholders  (72,463)  (75,097)  (72,463)  (75,097)

Less shares issued in lieu of rebate  22,294  23,544  22,294  23,544 

Net rebate paid  (50,169)  (51,553)  (50,169)  (51,553)

Interest paid  (2,914)  (5,734)  (2,842)  (6,339)

Income tax refunded / (paid)  (202)  (5,022)  (204)  (4,648)

Net cash flow from operating activities 20  35,346  54,538  37,342  34,067 

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 344  765  321  435 

Proceeds from the sale of investments  –  503  –  – 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangibles  (57,096)  (45,787)  (25,503)  (18,483)

Net cash flow from investing activities  (56,752)  (44,519)  (25,182)  (18,048)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of co-operative shares  290  388  290  388 

Acquisition of non-controlling interest  –  (7,100)  –  (7,100)

Repurchase of surrendered shares  (8,681)  (9,195)  (8,681)  (9,195)

Net drawdown / (repayment) of borrowings 24,000  (40,000) 24,000  (40,000)

Dividends paid  (3,947)  (3,770)  (3,947)  (3,770)

Net advances (to) from subsidiaries  –  –  (33,468)  (6,350)

Net cash flow from financing activities  (11,662)  (59,677)  (21,806)  (66,027)

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents  (9,744)  (49,658)  (9,646)  (50,008)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 June  18,679  68,337  17,962  67,970 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 May  8,935  18,679  8,316  17,962 

The accompanying Notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements
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Ballance Agri-Nutrients Limited (the “Company”) is a profit-oriented farmer owned co-operative company domiciled in New Zealand.  
The Company is registered under the Companies Act 1993 and the Co-operative Companies Act 1996.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 1993.

Financial statements for the Company and consolidated financial statements for the Group are presented. The consolidated financial 
statements of the Group as at and for the year ended 31 May 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the 
“Group”) and the Group’s interest in associates and jointly controlled entities. 

The Group’s principal activities are the manufacture, marketing and distribution of fertiliser, compound animal feed supplements and related 
products in New Zealand.

1.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)	 Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the New Zealand equivalents to International Financial 
Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS), as appropriate to profit-oriented entities. The Company also complies with the Companies Act 1993 and 
the Co-operative Companies Act 1996.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars (NZD) ($), which is the Company’s functional currency. All 
financial information presented in NZD ($) has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for derivative financial instruments which are 
measured at fair value.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 August 2016.

b)	 Use of estimates and judgements

The Group’s management is required to make judgements, estimates and apply assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements. They have been based on historical experience and other factors they believe to be reasonable. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Accounting policies, and information about judgements, estimations and assumptions that have had a significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements are disclosed in the relevant notes are follows:

– 	 Note 7 – Impairment

– 	 Note 10 – Deferred tax

– 	 Note 14 – The life of the Kapuni urea plant and capitalisation of cost in relation to plant redevelopment

– 	 Note 16 – Intangible assets

– 	 Note 22 – Capital and reserves (treatment of puttable instruments)

– 	 Note 23 – Financial instruments

c)	 New standards and interpretations

A number of new or revised standards are not yet effective for the year ended 31 May 2016, and have not been applied in preparing these 
financial statements. Those relevant to the Group are:

NZ IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement.

This standard simplifies how an entity should classify and measure financial instruments. This will result in revised disclosure, but is unlikely 
to have a significant impact on recognition or measurement of any balances within the financial statements. Effective for periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2018.

NZ IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

This standard impacts on how and when revenue is recognised. Additionally there will be changes in disclosure requirements. Effective for 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

NZ IFRS 16 – Leases.

This standard removes the classification of leases as either operating or finance leases for the lessee effectively treating all leases as 
finance leases. Effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

In preparing these financial statements the Group has early adopted the Disclosure Initiative – Amendments to NZ IAS 1.

Management has not assessed the impact of these standards on future financial statements but other than NZ IFRS 16 – Leases, are not 
expected to have a material impact.

From 1 April 2014, the new Financial Reporting Act 2013 (“FRA 2013”) has come into force replacing the Financial Reporting Act 1993.

The FRA 2013 is effective for companies with financial periods beginning on or after 1 April 2014 unless they meet the definition of a FMC 
reporting entity under the Financial Markets Conduct Act (“FMC Act”) and meet the transitional provision requirements of the FMC Act that 
require them to apply the Financial Reporting Act 1993. As the Group meets the requirements of an entity operating under the transitional 
provisions of the FMC Act, the Group will become an FMC reporting entity at the earlier of making an issue of securities under the FMC 
Act, opting into the FMC Act, becoming a recipient of funds from a conduit issuer or the Group’s next balance date after 1 December 2016 
i.e. 31 May 2017.

The change in legislation has no material impact on the entity’s obligation to prepare general-purpose financial statements. Neither 
the Companies Act 1993 nor the FMC Act require the preparation of parent financial statements where group financial statements are 
prepared. Accordingly on adoption of the FMC Act and the FRA 2013 the Group will no longer be required to prepare separate financial 
statements for the Company. 

2.	 REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Group Group Parent Parent

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Sale of goods  827,240  878,246  789,790  835,703 

Services provided  10,222  14,549  77  93 

Total revenue  837,462  892,795  789,867  835,796 

Other operating income

Dividend from subsidiary  –  –  –  15,726 

Other dividend income  17  30  17  30 

Government grants including NZ ETS credits  1,575  1,667  568  652 

Insurance claim  –  1,415  –  1,415 

Other  372  348  371  512 

 1,964  3,460  956  18,335 

Government grants relating to technology development and emissions trading credits have been received during the year. 

Insurance claim in 2015 includes recoveries relating to the claim for a fire at the ammonia urea plant in August 2011.

Policy

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, allowances, trade discounts and  
volume rebates.

Revenue is recognised when:

– 	 The amount of revenue and the costs in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably; and

– 	 It is probable that the economic benefits of the transaction will flow to the company.

Sales of goods are recognised when the risks and rewards of the goods have been transferred to the buyer.

Sales of services are recognised on a percentage of completion basis.

Insurance claim recoveries are recognised when received or when receipt is highly probable.

Government grants are recognised over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended  
to compensate.

3.	 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Group Group Parent Parent

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  451  189  430  52 

Research and development expense  2,588  4,061  2,587  4,044 

Donations  2  1  2  1 

Other  106  4  10  10 

Subvention payment to subsidiaries  –  –  10,273  15,251 

 3,147 4,255  13,302  19,358 
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4.	 PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Group Group Parent Parent

Note
2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Wages and salaries  71,116  72,601  45,314  47,502 

Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans  3,987  3,850  2,667  2,603 

Increase (decrease) in liability for long-service leave 19  46  88  (5)  46 

 75,149  76,539  47,976  50,151 

5.	 AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Group Group Parent Parent

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Audit services

Audit of financial statements  140  133  140  133 

Other services

Taxation services – compliance 27  32  27  32 

Taxation services – advice 40  41 37  41 

 207  206 204  206 

6.	 FINANCING INCOME AND EXPENSE

Group Group Parent Parent

Note
2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Financing income

Interest from subsidiaries  –  –  2,036  2,395 

Interest from bank  764  1,504  732  1,447 

Net change in fair value of derivatives designated at fair value  
through profit or loss  –  138  –  122 

 764  1,642  2,768  3,964 

Financing expense

Interest paid to subsidiaries  –  –  28  691 

Interest paid to banks  3,035  4,334  2,875  4,248 

Unwind of discount rate on deferred and contingent consideration 19  –  184  –  184 

Loss from close out of interest rate SWAPs  –  1,400  –  1,400 

Net change in fair value of derivatives designated at fair value  
through profit or loss  2  –  6  – 

Other financial expenses  129  157  129  157 

 3,166  6,075  3,038  6,680 

Financing costs (net)  2,402  4,433  270  2,716 

Policy

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested, foreign currency gains, gains on hedging instruments that are recognised in 
profit or loss and reductions in fair value of deferred and contingent consideration. Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the 
effective interest method.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings to the extent that they have not been capitalised to qualifying assets, foreign 
currency losses, impairment losses recognised on financial assets (except for trade receivables), and losses on hedging instruments that 
are recognised in profit or loss. Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

7.	 IMPAIRMENT WRITE DOWN AND REVAMP COSTS

a)	 Impairment write down

Group Group Parent Parent

Note
2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Impairment of Seales Winslow Limited (i)  –  18,688  –  – 

Impairment of investment in Seales Winslow Limited (ii)  –  –  –  18,688 

Impairment of Ag Hub Limited (iii) 16  2,700  –  –  – 

Impairment write back of investment in Super Air Limited (iv)  –  –  (1,000)  – 

 2,700 18,688  (1,000)  18,688 

(i)	 The impairment of Seales Winslow Limited is based on discounted cashflow calculations indicating impairment.

(ii)	 The write down of investment in subsidiary at the Parent level relates to the Company’s investment in Seales Winslow Limited, writing 
the carrying value of the investment of $16.5m down to nil and reducing the current account by $2.2m. This investment write down 
had no impact in the Group result.

(iii)	 The impairment of Ag Hub Limited is based on discounted cashflow calculations indicating impairment.

(iv)	 The impairment write back in Super Air Limited increases the carrying value of the investment to $3.2m. The write back had no 
impact in the Group result.

Policy

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence of 
impairment. 

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss, unless an asset has previously been revalued, in which case the impairment loss is 
recognised as a reversal to the extent of that previous revaluation with any excess recognised through profit or loss.

Impairment testing for cash-generating units (CGU)

The recoverable amounts of each CGU are assessed on the values in use. In assessing the values in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the assets.

Due to Ag Hub Limited profitability being below budget the Directors have assessed the investment for impairment.

Value in use for Ag Hub Limited was determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the unit and 
was based on the following key assumptions:

– 	 Cash flows were projected on actual operating results and a 5 year forecast.

– 	 A pre-tax discount rate of 12.2% was applied in determining the recoverable amount of the unit.

– 	 Relevant terminal and EBIT growth rates have been applied.

The Group has impaired the intangible assets in Ag Hub Limited by $2.7m as the recoverable amount was less than the carrying amount  
of the CGU.

b)	 Revamp urea plant

Group Group Parent Parent

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Kapuni revamp Urea Plant project costs  13,321  –  –  – 

Total expenditure in the current year on the revamp plant has been $13.3m to date. Given the decreased likelihood of the revamp 
occurring in the immediate term the Board has made the decision to write-off project cost to date. The total has been expensed  
to profit or loss.
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8.	 REBATES AND DIVIDENDS

Group Group Parent Parent

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Rebate provided for current year  30,220  72,250  30,220  72,250 

Rebate for prior year under provided recognised in the current year  213  157  213  157 

 30,433  72,407  30,433  72,407 

Dividend paid in the current year  3,947  3,770  3,947  3,770 

Total distributions to Co-operative shareholders  34,380  76,177  34,380  76,177 

Dividends paid in the current year at 10 cents per share  
(2015: 10 cents) with full tax imputation.

Balance Sheet:

Rebate provided for current year  30,220  72,250  30,220  72,250 

Less rebate allocated to share allotment  (10,540)  (22,294)  (10,540)  (22,294)

 19,680  49,956  19,680  49,956 

Policy

Rebateable sales are eligible for sales volume and value rebates as declared by the Directors from the trading result. When the rebate is 
accrued it is either allocated to the share allotment reserve for those shareholders who are required to increase their share quota (Note 
22a) or accrued as a current liability (rebate payable) and will be paid out in cash.

For financial reporting purposes rebates are treated as a deduction in profit or loss. The cash rebate payment is shown as a cash outflow 
from operating activities in the statement of cash flows.

9.	 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT)

Reconciliation of income tax expense (benefit)

Group Group Parent Parent

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

(Loss) profit before tax  (13,795)  (14,541)  17,541  (18,226)

Income tax using the domestic company tax rate – 28% (2015: 28%)  (3,862)  (4,072)  4,911  (5,103)

Increase (decrease) in income tax expense due to:

Non-deductible expenses  4,755  1,144  (992)  5,348 

Tax exempt revenues  (5)  (8)  (285)  (4,412)

Tax losses not previously recognised  (67)  (594)  –  – 

Adjustments for prior years  (55)  (240)  (136)  (198)

Other  (417)  299  85  236 

Income tax expense (benefit) in income statement  349  (3,471)  3,583  (4,129)

Comprising:

Current tax  (11)  2,493  6,749  (2,622)

Deferred tax  360  (5,964)  (3,166)  (1,507)

Income tax recognised directly in other comprehensive income

Derivatives  (4,915)  6,291  (4,915)  6,291 

 (4,915)  6,291  (4,915)  6,291 

Group Group

Imputation credits
2016
$000

2015
$000

The imputation credits are available to shareholders of the parent 
company:

through the parent company  115,277  115,268 

through subsidiaries  1,743  1,670 

 117,020 116,938 

Policy

Income tax expense (benefit) comprises current and deferred tax. The Group calculates income tax expense (benefit) using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at balance date.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss unless the tax relates to items in other comprehensive income, in which case the tax 
is recognised as an adjustment in other comprehensive income against the item to which it relates.

10.	DEFERRED TAX ASSET (LIABILITY)

Group

PPE and 
Intangibles 

$000

Provisions  
and accruals 

$000

Hedge  
reserve 

$000
Other 
$000

Total 
$000

Balance at 1 June 2014  (11,413)  4,063  1,983  3,289  (2,078)

Recognised in profit or loss  7,484  121  –  (1,641)  5,964 

Recognised in other comprehensive income  –  –  (6,292)  –  (6,292)

Balance at 31 May 2015  (3,929)  4,184  (4,309)  1,648  (2,406)

Recognised in profit or loss  (1,590)  84  –  1,146  360 

Recognised in other comprehensive income  –  –  4,915  –  4,915 

Balance at 31 May 2016  (5,519)  4,268  606  2,794  2,149 

Parent

PPE and 
Intangibles 

$000

Provisions  
and accruals 

$000

Hedge  
reserve 

$000
Other 
$000

Total 
$000

Balance at 1 June 2014  (6,909)  1,395  1,983  930  (2,601)

Recognised in profit or loss  1,865  94  –  (452)  1,507 

Recognised in other comprehensive income  –  –  (6,292)  –  (6,292)

Balance at 31 May 2015  (5,044)  1,489  (4,309)  478  (7,386)

Recognised in profit or loss  1,846  (4)  –  1,324  3,166 

Recognised in other comprehensive income  –  –  4,915  –  4,915 

Balance at 31 May 2016  (3,198)  1,485  606  1,802  695 

Included within Other is the tax value of loss carryforwards recognised for Group of $2.054m (2015: $0.963m) and for Parent $1.2m (2015: nil).

Policy

Deferred tax is:

– 	 Recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the 
amounts used for taxation purposes.

– 	 Not recognised for the initial recognition of goodwill and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities 
to the extent they are unlikely to reverse in the foreseeable future.

– 	 Measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse.
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11.	TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Group Parent Parent

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Current

Trade receivables  62,618  82,573  58,821  79,425 

Prepayments  3,857  3,550  2,510  2,284 

Receivables from subsidiaries

 66,475  86,123  61,331  81,709 

Trade Receivables status

Not past due  61,852  79,312  58,586  76,695 

past due 0 – 30 days  488  2,357  174  2,115 

past due 31 – 120 days  66  690  5  409 

past due > 120 days  212  214  56  206 

Total  62,618  82,573  58,821  79,425 

Policy

Trade and other receivables are stated at their cost less impairment losses and are classified as loans and receivables.

Impairment

Trade receivables allowance for impairment is nil (2015: nil). A provision for impairment is recognised when there is objective evidence that 
the Group will be unable to collect amounts due.

12.	 INVENTORIES

Group Group Parent Parent

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Manufactured and finished products  107,801  94,138  106,932  92,798 

Raw materials  27,300  25,134  18,926  17,738 

 135,101  119,272  125,858  110,536 

Goods in transit  3,308  32,631  3,308  32,631 

Packaging  4,716  4,952  3,960  4,393 

Spares and stores  8,652  8,663  5,765  5,427 

 151,777  165,518  138,891  152,987 

In 2016 the write-down of inventories in subsidiaries to net realisable value amounted to $3.6m (2015: $1.3m).

Policy

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). NRV is the estimated selling price, less estimated costs of 
completion and selling costs.

The cost of inventory is based on the weighted average basis.

13.	 INVESTMENTS

a)	 The Company has the following investments:

Principal Activity

2016 
Balance 

date Interest

2015 
Balance  

date Interest

Subsidiaries

Ballance Agri-Nutrients (Kapuni) Limited Urea manufacture 31 May 100%  31 May 100%

Super Air Limited Agricultural aviation 31 May 100%  31 May 100%

Ag Hub Limited Farm technology 31 May 100%  31 May 100%

Seales Winslow Limited Animal feed and nutrition 31 May 100%  31 May 100%

Policy

Subsidiaries are entities controlled directly or indirectly by the parent. The parent holds 100% of the voting rights in all entities reported 
as subsidiaries. There are currently no indicators that the parent does not have control consistent with these voting rights. The financial 
statements of subsidiaries are reported in the financial statements using the acquisition method of consolidation.

Intra-group balances and transactions between group companies are eliminated on consolidation.

All subsidiaries are incorporated in New Zealand.

b)	 Equity accounted investees

Principal Activity

2016 
Balance 

date Interest

2015  
Balance  

date Interest

NZ Phosphate Company Limited Research 30 June 50% 30 June 50%

EnCoate Holdings Limited Research and development 30 June 50% 30 June 50%

Summary financial information for equity accounted investees not adjusted for the percentage ownership held by the Group:

Total  
assets  

$000

Total  
liabilities  

$000
Revenues  

$000

Profit  
(loss)  
$000

Total  
comprehensive 

income  
$000

Equity accounted investees 2016  281  26  82  (50)  (50)

2015  342  37  98  42  42 

Policy

Associates are entities in which the parent has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the operating and financial policies.

The parent holds over 20%, but not more than half, of the voting rights in all entities reported as associates, and has assessed that there 
are currently no indicators that the parent does not have significant influence consistent with these voting rights.

Where the parent has 50% voting rights in an entity reported as an associate we have determined that this does not constitute joint control 
as there is more than one combination of parties that can achieve majority voting rights.

Investments in associates are reported in the financial statements using the equity method.

All associates are incorporated in New Zealand.



notes to the financial statements notes to the financial statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2016. BALLANCE AGRI-NUTRIENTS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2016. BALLANCE AGRI-NUTRIENTS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES.

46 47

14.	PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE)

Group

Land and 
improvements 

$000
Buildings 

$000

Plant, 
equipment  
and aircraft 

$000

Under 
construction 

$000
Total 
$000

Carrying value 1 June 2014  44,860  56,530  136,698  11,635  249,723 

Cost  47,539  96,251  284,468  11,635  439,893 

Accumulated depreciation  (2,679)  (39,721)  (147,770)  –  (190,170)

Acquisitions (transfers)  3,297  7,786  16,895  12,517  40,495 

Depreciation expense  (417)  (4,149)  (24,797)  –  (29,363)

Impairment  (1,644)  (5,644)  (11,400)  –  (18,688)

Disposals  533  (1,632)  50  –  (1,049)

Carrying value 31 May 2015  46,629  52,891  117,446  24,152  241,118 

Cost  51,524  101,501  296,058  24,152  473,235 

Accumulated depreciation  (4,895)  (48,610)  (178,612)  –  (232,117)

Acquisitions (transfers)  475  2,384  43,398 (2,163)  44,094 

Depreciation expense  (411)  (4,046)  (24,475)  –  (28,932)

Disposals  – 205  (2,000)  –  (1,795)

Carrying value 31 May 2016  46,693  51,434  134,369  21,989  254,485 

Cost  52,000  104,719  282,892  21,989  461,600 

Accumulated depreciation  (5,307)  (53,285)  (148,523)  –  (207,115)

Parent

Land and 
improvements 

$000
Buildings 

$000

Plant, 
equipment  
and aircraft 

$000

Under 
construction 

$000
Total 
$000

Carrying value 1 June 2014  40,474  46,314  47,996  5,706  140,490 

Cost  43,146  83,015  118,245  5,706  250,112 

Accumulated depreciation  (2,672)  (36,701)  (70,249)  –  (109,622)

Acquisitions (transfers)  2,963  1,255  7,405  5,210  16,834 

Depreciation expense  (356)  (3,573)  (9,141)  –  (13,070)

Disposals  (243)  (667)  328  –  (582)

Carrying value 31 May 2015  42,838  43,329  46,588  10,916  143,671 

Cost  45,859  82,866  122,996  10,916  262,637 

Accumulated depreciation  (3,021)  (39,537)  (76,408)  –  (118,966)

Acquisitions (transfers)  403  2,127  10,264  1,392  14,186 

Depreciation expense  (377)  (3,636)  (8,226)  –  (12,239)

Disposals  – 205  (708)  –  (503)

Carrying value 31 May 2016  42,864  42,025  47,918  12,308  145,115 

Cost  46,262  85,827 129,860  12,308  274,257 

Accumulated depreciation  (3,398)  (43,802)  (81,942)  – (129,142)

The carrying value of the Kapuni urea plant is regularly reviewed in relation to the availability of economic gas supply. Contracted gas 
supply to 2020 (2015: 2020) held by the Company provides confidence and certainty in the future production of the plant.

Policy

Items of PPE are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Capitalisation of costs stops when the asset is ready for use.

Subsequent expenditure that increases the economic benefits derived from the asset is capitalised.

The costs of day-to-day servicing of PPE are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Where parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of PPE.

Depreciation commences when an asset becomes available for use.

Depreciation of PPE, other than land, is calculated on a straight line basis and expensed over the useful life of the asset.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Land improvements 	 2 – 20 years

Buildings 	 12 – 50 years

Plant and equipment 	 2 – 20 years

Aircraft included in plant and equipment 	 3 – 10 years

Kapuni plant depreciated in line with gas contract

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date. 

Capital expenditure commitments

The estimated capital expenditure for PPE contracted for at balance date but not provided is $1.693 million for the group  
(2015: $0.769 million).

15.	OPERATING LEASES

Group Group Parent Parent

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Leases as lessee

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

Less than one year  5,563  4,858  4,791  4,158 

Between one and five years  19,555  15,728  18,611  14,937 

After five years  13,311  13,786  13,311  13,781 

 38,429  34,372  36,713  32,876 

Operating lease expense recognised  5,779  5,966  4,898  5,121 

The Group leases a number of distribution and storage facilities and motor vehicles under operating leases. These leases are reviewed 
periodically to reflect market rentals.

Policy

(i)	 Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term of the lease.
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16.	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group

Emissions 
trading  

scheme 
$000

Patents and 
trademarks 

$000
Software 

$000

Technology 
systems and 

licences 
$000

Total 
$000

Carrying value 1 June 2014  1,635  –  10,843  2,068  14,546 

Cost  1,635  –  35,022  4,046  40,703 

Accumulated amortisation  –  –  (24,179)  (1,978)  (26,157)

Acquired separately  –  36  1,700  776  2,512 

Grant – net allocation of emissions trading scheme credits  1,512  –  –  –  1,512 

Amortisation  –  –  (5,639)  (427)  (6,066)

Carrying value 31 May 2015  3,146  36  6,904  2,417  12,504 

Cost  3,146  36  36,722  4,822  44,726 

Accumulated amortisation  –  –  (29,818)  (2,405)  (32,223)

Acquired separately  –  2  3,793  920  4,715 

Under development  –  – 8,528  – 8,528

Grant – net allocation of emissions trading scheme credits  1,006  –  –  –  1,006 

Amortisation  –  –  (6,497)  (539)  (7,036)

Impairment  –  –  –  (2,700)  (2,700)

Carrying value 31 May 2016  4,152  38  12,728  98  17,017 

Cost  4,152  38  45,953  3,042  53,185 

Accumulated amortisation  –  –  (33,225)  (2,944)  (36,169)

Parent

Emissions 
trading  

scheme 
$000

Patents and 
trademarks 

$000
Software 

$000

Technology 
systems and 

licences 
$000

Total 
$000

Carrying value 1 June 2014  –  –  10,667  –  10,667 

Cost  –  –  33,680  –  33,680 

Accumulated amortisation  –  –  (23,013)  –  (23,013)

Acquired separately  –  –  1,649  –  1,649 

Amortisation  –  –  (5,570)  –  (5,570)

Carrying value 31 May 2015  –  –  6,746  –  6,746 

Cost  –  –  35,329  –  35,329 

Accumulated amortisation  –  –  (28,583)  –  (28,583)

Acquired separately  –  –  3,790  –  3,790 

Under development  –  – 8,528  – 8,528

Amortisation  –  –  (6,433)  –  (6,433)

Carrying value 31 May 2016  –  –  12,631  –  12,631 

Cost  –  –  45,030  –  45,030 

Accumulated amortisation  –  –  (32,399)  –  (32,399)

Policy

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost, and subsequently stated at cost less any accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure that increases the economic benefits derived from the asset is capitalised. All other expenditure is expensed  
as incurred.

Software, technology systems and licences have been assessed as having a finite life greater than 12 months, and are amortised from the 
date the asset is ready for use on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Software 	 2 – 7 years

Technology systems and licences 	 3 – 7 years

Amortisation is recognised within administration expense.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date. 

The Group has an allocation of New Zealand Emissions Trading Scheme (NZ ETS) units due to the Kapuni urea plant qualifying as an 
Emissions Intensive Trade Exposed (EITE) entity.

This entitles urea manufacturing entities to receive an allocation of emission units, calculated by reference to production levels, which is 
intended to offset the majority of the cost increases associated with the NZ ETS.

The Group has recognised these units at fair value upon initial recognition. Units held will not be revalued but may be subject to an 
impairment if a review of the active market indicates a lower value.

The allocation is recognised as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the period to which the  
grant relates.

17.	TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Group Parent Parent

Note
2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Current

Trade payables due to subsidiaries  –  –  8,987  8,978 

Trade payables and accrued expenses  34,155  37,385  24,233  26,693 

Share repurchase instalments  4,545  4,252  4,545  4,252 

Employee benefits  6,479  6,486  3,433  3,312 

Emissions trading scheme – deferred income  1,729  795  –  – 

Emissions trading scheme – liability  69  599  –  – 

Non-trade payables and accrued expenses  2,785  3,333  2,545  2,652 

 49,762  52,850  43,743  45,887 

Non-current

Liability for long-service leave 19  1,279  1,233  791  796 

The emissions trading scheme deferred income refers to the amount of New Zealand Units (NZU) held but not yet earned. NZUs have 
been allocated in advance based on an estimated annual urea production to compensate for the cost of carbon associated with urea 
manufacture. The NZUs allocated are only earned as urea is produced and the income progressively released.
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18.	LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Group Group Parent Parent

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Current liabilities  24,000  –  24,000  – 

At 31 May 2016 the facility available was $220m, of which $24m was drawn in the Group and Parent (2015: facility $250m, actual drawn 
nil Group, nil Parent).

The interest rate in 2016 was 3.35%. Deposits and the Bank Revolving Cash Advance Facility have different interest rates and the loan 
agreement provides for right of set off against deposits.

Borrowings are unsecured and subject to various lending covenants. These have all been met for the years ended 31 May 2016 and 2015.

19.	PROVISIONS

Group Group Parent Parent

Note
2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Employee benefits – long-service leave provision

Opening balance  1,233  1,145  796  750 

Movement in provision 4  46  88  (5)  46 

Closing balance 17  1,279  1,233  791  796 

Deferred consideration

Opening balance  –  6,916  –  6,916 

Cash payment  –  (7,100)  –  (7,100)

Unwind of discount 6  –  184  –  184 

Closing balance  –  –  –  – 

Restructuring

Opening balance  –  1,571  –  1,571 

Cash payment  –  (1,571)  –  (1,571)

Closing balance  –  –  –  – 

Total provisions  1,279  1,233  791  796 

Total provisions are reported in the balance sheet as:

 – current liabilities  –  –  –  – 

 – non-current liabilities  1,279  1,233  791  796 

 1,279  1,233  791  796 

Policy

A provision is recognised where the likelihood of a resultant liability is more probable than not, and the amount required to settle the liability 
can be reliably estimated.

20.	RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Group Group Parent Parent

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

(Loss) profit for the year  (14,144)  (11,070)  13,957  (14,097)

Add non-cash and non-operating items:

Inventory write-down to net present value  3,591  1,300  –  – 

Depreciation  28,933  29,364  12,238  13,071 

Amortisation  7,035  6,066  6,433  5,570 

Emissions trading scheme – net cost of carbon  404  1,078  –  – 

Impairment write down  2,700  18,688  (1,000)  18,688 

Subvention write back  –  –  (10,273)  15,251 

Derivative fair value  134  336  135  336 

Gain (loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment  203  285  182  148 

Employee benefits  46  88  (5)  46 

Rebate transferred to Share Allotment Reserve  10,540  22,228  10,540  22,228 

Equity accounted earnings of associates  25  (21)  –  – 

Tax loss offset and intercompany dividend recorded against  
inter-company funding  –  –  6,847  (20,620)

Decrease in deferred tax  360  (5,964)  (3,165)  (1,507)

Add (deduct) movements in working capital:

Movement in trade and other receivables  19,518  38,206  20,249  32,522 

Movement in inventories  10,033  (30,877)  13,980  (25,285)

Movement in trade and other payables  (3,542)  (11,267)  (2,197)  (8,534)

Movement in rebate payable  (30,277)  (1,373)  (30,276)  (1,374)

Movement in tax receivable  (213)  (2,529)  (303)  (2,376)

Net cash from operating activities  35,346  54,538  37,342  34,067 
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21.	RELATED PARTIES

Identity of related parties

Related parties of the group include the subsidiaries and associates disclosed in Note 13, and key management personnel (directors and 
the executive team).

The group may transact on an arms’ length basis with companies in which directors have a disclosed interest. Sales and rebates paid to 
directors are less than 1% of the total operating revenue and rebates for the year respectively.

Parent Parent

2016
$000

2015
$000

Transactions with external related parties through common directorship,  
control or significant influence

Revenue  3,811  3,652 

Expenses  2,419  4,174 

Rebate  233  280 

Dividend  18  16 

Balances with external related parties through common directorship,  
control or significant influence

Amounts owing to the company  58  147 

Amounts owed by the company  4  305 

Transactions with subsidiaries and associates

Purchases of inventory from subsidiaries  80,308  121,317 

Dividends received by the Company from subsidiaries  –  (15,726)

Subvention (paid) received to /from subsidiaries  (10,273)  (15,251)

Interest paid by the Company to subsidiaries  28  691 

Interest received by the Company from subsidiaries  2,036  2,395 

Balances with subsidiaries and associates

Amounts owing to the Company by subsidiaries  40,894  13,257 

Amounts owed by the Company to subsidiaries  (2,273)  (11,530)

 38,621  1,727 

Term loans owing to the Company by subsidiaries  30,733  30,733 

Trade receivables and trade payables balances at reporting date between the Parent and its subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 11 and  
17 respectively.

Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

Intercompany loans are repayable on demand and attract interest at between 2.2% and 3.8% per annum.

Intercompany term loans attract interest at between 3.5% and 5.0% per annum.

Group Group Parent Parent

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Key management personnel and directors compensation

Short term employee benefits, excluding directors  3,470  6,125  2,960  5,231 

Directors’ fees  725  585  725  585 

Total  4,195  6,710  3,685  5,816 

22.	CAPITAL AND RESERVES

a)	 Share capital

(i)	 Reconciliation of movement in co-operative shares 

Parent and Group

2016
000

2015
000

Opening balance  39,627  37,872 

Co-operative shares issued  36  48 

Co-operative shares issued in lieu of rebate  2,752  2,907 

Co-operative shares repurchased  (1,176)  (1,200)

Closing balance  41,239  39,627 

(ii)	 Co-operative shares

All shares are fully paid and have no par value. Each share has a nominal value of $8.10 (2015: $8.10). The holders of ordinary shares are 
entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All shares 
rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Policy

Shares are issued as fully paid shares. The Company’s shares are puttable instruments that meet the criteria required under the 
amendment to NZ IAS 32 Financial Instruments and are classified as equity.

It is not the Company’s normal policy to issue shares with unpaid capital which is subject to specified calls in the future.

(iii)	 Share redemption features

Shares are nominal value shares issued under the Co-operative Companies Act 1996. The share qualification quota is 30 shares per 
tonne of annual fertiliser purchases. Shares may be redeemed by the Parent Company at either a shareholder’s request or at the Parent 
Company instigation as provided for in the Co-operative Companies Act 1996, the Companies Act 1993 or the Parent Company 
Constitution. This is normally when a shareholder ceases to have the capacity to transact business with the Group.

Share repurchase terms under the Company’s constitution are for payment by three equal instalments over a two-year period or 
shareholders may elect an accelerated payment option at a discounted surrender price per share. 

(iv)	 Repurchase of shares

During the year 1,176,075 shares (2015: 1,200,192) were repurchased at an average price of $7.63 per share (2015: $7.61) and  
subsequently cancelled.

(v)	 Capital management

The Group’s capital includes share capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business.

The Board monitors forecast capital inflows and outflows and the level of shareholding relative to shareholders’ quota to ensure that the 
Company retains a strong capital base.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.

b)	 Other reserves

Other reserves comprise:

– 	 A shares allotment reserve is an estimate of the portion of accrued rebate for the current year that will be applied to the issuance of 
shares in the Company where shareholders hold less than their quota shareholding requirement.

– 	 The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments 
relating to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.
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23.	FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management policy

The Group has a comprehensive treasury policy, approved by the board of directors, to manage financial risks arising from business 
activity. The policy outlines the objectives and approach that the group applies to manage:

– 	 Foreign currency risk

– 	 Interest rate risk

– 	 Credit risk

– 	 Liquidity risk

For each risk type, any position outside the policy limits requires the prior approval of the board of directors. 

Each risk is monitored on a regular basis and reported to the board.

Exposure to foreign currency, interest rate, credit and liquidity risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group manages commodity price risks through negotiated supply contracts and forward physical contracts. However, these contracts 
are for expected product usage requirements only and are not accounted for as financial instruments.

Derivative and hedge accounting policy

The Group recognises derivatives at fair value on the date the derivative contract is entered into, and subsequently they are re-measured to 
their fair value at each balance date. All derivatives are classified as level 2 on the fair value hierarchy explained below.

The Group designates certain derivatives as cash flow hedges (of highly probable forecast transactions).

At inception each transaction is documented, detailing:

– 	 The economic relationship and the hedge ratio between hedging instruments and hedged items;

– 	 The risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking the hedge transaction; and

– 	 The assessment (initially and on an ongoing basis) of whether the derivatives that are used in the hedging transaction are highly 
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

The underlying risk of the derivative contracts is identical to the hedged risk component (i.e. the interest rate risk and the foreign exchange 
risk) therefore the group has established a one-to-one hedge ratio.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedge instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised, or no longer qualifies for  
hedge accounting.

Cash flow hedges

The Group has entered into foreign exchange forward contracts (the hedging instruments) to hedge the variability in cash flows arising from 
foreign currency exchange rate movements.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the hedging instruments are recognised in other comprehensive income.

The following are recognised in profit or loss:

– 	 any gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion of the hedging instrument; and

– 	 fair value changes in the hedging instrument previously accumulated in other comprehensive income, in the periods when the hedged 
item is recognised in profit or loss.

Once hedging is discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or  
loss either:

– 	 at the same time as the forecast transaction; or

– 	 immediately if the transaction is no longer expected to occur

a)	 Foreign currency risk

Quantitative disclosures

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk can be summarised as follows:

Group Group Parent Parent

2016
$000 
USD

2015
$000 
USD

2016
$000 
USD

2015
$000 
USD

Foreign currency risk USD

Bank accounts  1,202  1,402  1,202  1,402 

Trade payables  (248)  (2,019)  (248)  (2,019)

Net balance sheet exposure before hedging  954  (617)  954  (617)

Forward exchange contracts relating to exposures  –  617  –  617 

Net unhedged exposure  –  –  –  – 

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 May 2016 it is estimated that a 10% movement either way in the value of the NZD against the USD would have increased 
(decreased) equity and profit or loss in both the Parent and Group by the amounts shown below.

Equity
2016  
$000

Profit or  
loss

2016  
$000

Equity
2015  
$000

Profit or  
loss

2015  
$000

Forward exchange contracts +10%  (21,972)  –  (17,627)  – 

-10%  26,883  –  21,592  – 

Policy

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the Company’s functional 
currency. Primarily denominated in United States dollars (USD). 

Policy is to hedge up to 100% of trade payables and bank balances denominated in a foreign currency. At any point in time the Group  
also hedges between 20% and 100% of its estimated foreign currency exposure in respect of forecasted purchases over the following  
12 months. 

Derivative contract and options have maturities of less than one year at the reporting date. 

Determination of fair value

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their listed market price, if available. If a listed market price is not available, then 
fair value is estimated by discounting the difference between the contractual forward price and the current forward price for the residual 
maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) plus an estimated credit margin that are available for 
similar financial instruments.

The fair value of foreign exchange options is based on market interest rates, foreign exchange rates and market volatility to calculate a 
market premium value for the given option.
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b)	 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk – repricing analysis

Group 2016
Total 
$000

< 6  
months 

$000

6 – 12 
months 

$000

1 – 2  
years 
$000

2 – 5  
years 
$000

Variable rate instruments and related derivatives

Cash and cash equivalents  8,935  8,935  –  –  – 

Bank loans  (24,000)  (24,000)  –  –  – 

Net variable rate instruments (15,065) (15,065)  –  –  – 

Group 2015
Total 
$000

< 6  
months 

$000

6 – 12 
months 

$000

1 – 2  
years 
$000

2 – 5  
years 
$000

Variable rate instruments and related derivatives

Cash and cash equivalents  18,679  18,679  –  –  – 

Parent interest rate risk is the same as the Group.

Policy

The group is exposed to interest rate risk through its borrowing activities.

Interest rate exposures are managed primarily by entering into derivative contracts to achieve an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate 
exposure within the group’s policy.

Determination of fair value

The fair value of interest rate swaps is based on broker quotes. Those quotes are tested for reasonableness by discounting estimated 
future cash flows based on the terms and maturity of each contract and using market interest rates for a similar instrument at the 
measurement date.

c)	 Credit risk

The group is exposed to credit risk, in the normal course of business, from financial institutions and customers. The main objective is to 
minimise financial loss as a result of counterparty default.

Our credit policies to manage this exposure include:

– 	 Individual policy limits

– 	 Exposure to the agricultural industry through a limited number of merchants and direct customers

– 	 Dealings with financial institutions with high credit ratings

d)	 Liquidity risk

Group 2016

Carrying  
value
$000

Contractual 
cash flows

$000

< 6  
months

$000

6 – 12  
months

$000

1 – 2  
years 
$000

2 – 5  
years 
$000

> 5  
years
$000

Unsecured bank loans 24,000  24,000  24,000  –  –  –  – 

Trade and other payables  49,762  49,762  49,762  –  –  –  – 

Net rebates payable  19,680  19,680  19,680  –  –  –  – 

Total non-derivative liabilities  93,442  93,442  93,442  –  –  –  – 

Gross settled foreign exchange 
derivatives used for hedging:

Cash inflow  238,273  180,194  58,079  –  –  – 

Cash outflow  (241,680)  (183,106)  (58,574)  –  –  – 

 (2,173)  (3,407)  (2,912)  (495)  –  –  – 

Group 2015

Carrying  
value
$000

Contractual 
cash flows

$000

< 6  
months

$000

6 – 12  
months

$000

1 – 2  
years 
$000

2 – 5  
years 
$000

> 5  
years
$000

Trade and other payables  52,850  52,850  52,850  –  –  –  – 

Net rebates payable  49,956  49,956  49,956  –  –  –  – 

Total non-derivative liabilities  102,806  102,806  102,806  –  –  –  – 

Gross settled foreign exchange 
derivatives used for hedging:

Cash inflow  192,254  137,324  54,930  –  –  – 

Cash outflow  (178,710)  (126,533)  (52,177)  –  –  – 

 15,511  13,544  10,791  2,753  –  –  – 

The above table shows the timing of non-discounted cash flows for all financial instrument liabilities and derivatives.

Policy

The group is exposed to liquidity risk where there is a risk that the group may encounter difficulty in meeting its day to day obligations due 
to the timing of cash receipts and payments.

The objective is to ensure the Group generates sufficient cash flows from its operating activities to meet its obligations arising from its 
financial liabilities and has credit lines in place to cover potential shortfalls.
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e)	 Classification and fair values

Group 2016

Loans and 
receivables 

$000

Designated  
at fair value 

$000

Other 
amortised  

cost 
$000

Total  
carrying 
amount 

$000

Fair  
value 
$000

Assets

Derivatives  –  913  –  913  913 

Trade and other receivables  62,618  –  –  62,618  62,618 

Cash and cash equivalents 8,935  –  – 8,935 8,935

Total assets  71,553  913  –  72,446  72,446 

Liabilities

Derivatives  –  3,086  –  3,086  3,086 

Trade and other payables  –  –  49,762  49,762  49,762 

Net rebates payable  –  –  19,680  19,680  19,680 

Bank loans  24,000  –  –  24,000  24,000 

Total liabilities  24,000  3,086  69,442  96,528  96,528 

Group 2015

Loans and 
receivables 

$000

Designated  
at fair value 

$000

Other 
amortised  

cost 
$000

Total  
carrying 
amount 

$000

Fair  
value 
$000

Assets

Derivatives  –  15,511  –  15,511  15,511 

Trade and other receivables  82,573  –  –  82,573  82,573 

Cash and cash equivalents  18,679  –  –  18,679  18,679 

Total assets  101,252  15,511  –  116,763  116,763 

Liabilities

Trade and other payables  –  –  52,850  52,850  52,850 

Net rebates payable  –  –  49,956  49,956  49,956 

Total liabilities  –  –  102,806  102,806  102,806 

Parent 2016

Loans and 
receivables 

$000

Designated  
at fair value 

$000

Other 
amortised  

cost 
$000

Total  
carrying 
amount 

$000

Fair  
value 
$000

Assets

Term loan with subsidiary  30,733  –  –  30,733  30,733 

Total non-current assets  30,733  –  –  30,733  30,733 

Derivatives  –  913  –  913  913 

Trade and other receivables  58,821  –  –  58,821  58,821 

Inter-company funding  40,894  –  –  40,894  40,894 

Cash and cash equivalents 8,316  –  – 8,316 8,316

Total current assets  108,031  913  –  108,944  108,944 

Total assets  138,764  913  –  139,677  139,677 

Liabilities

Derivatives  –  3,086  –  3,086  3,086 

Trade and other payables  –  –  43,743  43,743  43,743 

Inter-company funding  –  –  2,273  2,273  2,273 

Net rebates payable  –  –  19,680  19,680  19,680 

Bank loans 24,000  –  – 24,000 24,000

Total liabilities 24,000  3,086  65,696  92,782  92,782 

Parent 2015

Loans and 
receivables 

$000

Designated  
at fair value 

$000

Other 
amortised  

cost 
$000

Total  
carrying 
amount 

$000

Fair  
value 
$000

Assets

Term loan with subsidiary  30,733  –  –  30,733  30,733 

Total non-current assets  30,733  –  –  30,733  30,733 

Derivatives  –  15,511  –  15,511  15,511 

Trade and other receivables  79,425  –  –  79,425  79,425 

Inter-company funding  13,257  –  –  13,257  13,257 

Cash and cash equivalents  17,962  –  –  17,962  17,962 

Total current assets  110,644  15,511  –  126,155  126,155 

Total assets  141,377  15,511  –  156,888  156,888 

Liabilities

Trade and other payables  –  –  45,887  45,887  45,887 

Inter-company funding  –  –  11,530  11,530  11,530 

Net rebates payable  –  –  49,956  49,956  49,956 

Total liabilities  –  –  107,373  107,373  107,373 

Determination of fair value

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows, 
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

e)	 Fair value hierarchy

Financial instruments measured at fair value are classified according to the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly  
(i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Derivative financial assets and liabilities are level 2 on the fair value hierarchy.

24.	CONTINGENCIES

The Directors are not aware of any material contingent liabilities at balance date.
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auditors’ report

Independent auditor’s report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BALLANCE AGRI-NUTRIENTS LIMITED

Report on the company and group financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ballance Agri-Nutrients Limited (‘’the company’’) and the group, comprising the 
company and its subsidiaries, on pages 30 to 57. The financial statements comprise the balance sheets as at 31 May 2016, the income 
statements and statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, for both the company and the group.

This report is made solely to the shareholders as a body. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s 
shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in the auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company’s shareholders as a body, for our audit work, this report or any 
of the opinions we have formed.

Directors’ responsibility for the company and group financial statements

The directors are responsible on behalf of the company for the preparation of company and group financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and International Financial Reporting Standards that give a true and fair view of the 
matters to which they relate, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of company and 
group financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these company and group financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the company and group financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the company and group financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the company and group’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the company and group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as evaluating the presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Our firm has also provided other services to the company and group in relation to tax compliance and tax advisory services. Subject to certain 
restrictions, partners and employees of our firm may also deal with the company and group on normal terms within the ordinary course of 
trading activities of the business of the company and group. These matters have not impaired our independence as auditor of the company and 
group. The firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the company and group.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements on pages 30 to 57:

•	 comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;

•	 comply with International Financial Reporting Standards;

•	 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company and the group as at 31 May 2016 and of the financial performance and 
cash flows of the company and the group for the year then ended.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with the requirements of sections 16(1)(d) and 16(1)(e) of the Financial Reporting Act 1993, we report that:

•	 we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required; and

•	 in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by Ballance Agri-Nutrients Limited as far as appears from our examination  
of those records.

11 August 2016

Tauranga
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directors’ interests

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Particulars of other company appointments (excluding some family and farming companies) are:

Director Position Company

GW Baldwin Director Trinity Lands Limited

Livestock Improvement Corporation Limited 

Spitfire Dairies Limited

Wuppertal Farming Limited

Trustee South Waikato Development (Drive) Trust

AG Brantley CEO Genesis Energy Limited (Retired 2016)

Director Genesis Power Investments Limited (Retired 2016)

Kupe Holdings Limited (Retired 2016)

GP No. 2 Limited (Retired 2016)

GP No. 5 Limited (Retired 2016)

Genesis Energy Insurance Pte. Limited (Retired 2016)

CEO Õtãkaro Limited (Appointed 2016)

Member, Security and Reliability Council Electricity Authority of New Zealand

Trustee / Chairman Genesis Oncology Trust

KR Ellis Director Freightways Limited

Port of Tauranga Limited

FSF Management Company Limited

Envirowaste Services Limited

Chairman NZ Social Infrastructure Fund Limited

Metlifecare Limited

EJ Harvey Director Heartland Bank Limited

Investore Property Limited

Kathmandu Holdings Limited

Stride Property Limited

Port Otago Limited

Chairman NZ Opera Limited

AD Morrison Director Beef + Lamb New Zealand Limited

Glenroy Morrison Limited

NZ Meat Board

Ovis Management Limited

Partner AD Morrison Farms Partnership

Panel Member Pastoral Greenhouse Gas Research Consortium

DE Peacocke Director Melrose Limited

New Zealand Phosphate Company Limited

Taupiri Holdings Limited

OC Saxton Chairman Sakura Pastoral Limited Partnership

Wairio Farm Limited Partnership

Director Mead Pastoral Limited Partnership

Tuatahi Farming Limited

Waihi Livestock Limited

MJ Taggart Chairman Alliance Group Limited

SJ von Dadelszen Trustee AGMARDT

Chairperson Central Hawke’s Bay Consumer Power Trust (Retired 2015)

Shareholder Hinerangi Station Limited

Totara Dairy Farm Limited

Specific Disclosures

Interests were declared during the year as appropriate pursuant to section 140(1) of the Companies Act 1993 for the following  
commercial relationships:

All Company Directors and those of relevant subsidiary companies disclosed their appropriate interests in connection with securities  
for banking and loan facilities to Group companies.
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directors’ interests

Company Information 

No requests have been received from Directors under section 145 of the Companies Act 1993 to use Company information received in their 
capacity as Directors which would not otherwise have been available to them.

Share Dealings

Directors hold, purchase and resell shares consistent with the share quota system related to fertiliser purchases adopted by the Co-operative. 
There have been no share transactions requiring disclosure to the Board under section 148(2) of the Companies Act 1993 other than when 
shares are held under the quota system, beneficially in either a Director’s own name, or by an associated person and are in the ordinary course 
of business of the Company.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY DIRECTORS

Section 211(2) of the Companies Act 1993 requires the company to disclose, in relation to its subsidiaries, the total remuneration and value  
of other benefits received by directors and former directors and particulars of entries in the interests registers made during the year ended  
31 May 2016. 

Subsidiary company directors’ disclosures:

No employee of Ballance Agri-Nutrients Limited appointed as a Director of a subsidiary receives any remuneration or benefits as a director. 
The remuneration and other benefits of such employees are included in the relevant bandings for remuneration under employee remuneration. 
Employees of Ballance Agri-Nutrients Limited are indicated by an (E) after their name. Except where shown in the directors’ remuneration table, 
no other director of any subsidiary company within the group receives directors’ fees or other benefits as a director.

The following persons respectively held office as directors of subsidiary companies at the end of the year, or in the case of those persons with 
an (R) after their name ceased to hold office during the year. 

Ag Hub Limited
RK Hopkins (E), MD Wynne (E)

Altum Nutrition Limited
RK Hopkins (E), MD Wynne (E)

Ballance Agri-Nutrients (Kapuni) Limited
RK Hopkins (E), MD Wynne (E)

Seales Winslow Limited
RK Hopkins (E), MD Wynne (E)

Bay of Plenty Fertiliser Company Limited
RK Hopkins (E), MD Wynne (E)

Southfert Limited
RK Hopkins (E), MD Wynne (E)

BOP Fertiliser Limited
RK Hopkins (E), MD Wynne (E)

Summit Quinphos Limited
RK Hopkins (E), MD Wynne (E)

Ballance Limited
RK Hopkins (E), MD Wynne (E)

Super Air Limited
RK Hopkins (E), MD Wynne (E)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Fees paid to Directors were:

Parent Group

GW Baldwin 63,000 63,000

AG Brantley 63,000 63,000

KR Ellis 66,333 66,333

EJ Harvey 73,000 73,000

AD Morrison 63,000 63,000

DE Peacocke 131,667 131,667

OC Saxton 63,000 63,000

MJ Taggart 63,000 63,000

SJ von Dadelszen 63,000 63,000

Total paid to Company Directors 649,000 649,000
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Insurance

The Company has arranged a Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance policy to insure the Directors and employees of the Company  
and its subsidiaries in respect of those matters permitted to be insured against by S162 of the Companies Act 1993 and the constitution  
of the Company. 

Co-operative status

As required by section 10 of the Co-operative Companies Act 1996, the following resolution was passed by the Board on 27 July 2016.  
All Directors present voted in favour of the resolution:

That in the opinion of the Board of Directors, Ballance Agri-Nutrients Limited has through the year ended 31 May 2016 and since registration  
of the company under the Co-operative Companies Act 1996 (“the Act”), been a Co-operative Company within the meaning of that Act. 

The grounds for holding this opinion are that:

a)	 The principal activity of the Company is, and is stated in its constitution to be, “a co-operative activity” (as defined in the Act), that is 
supplying shareholders of the company with fertiliser and related products and other goods and services;

b)	 Not less than 60% of the voting rights attaching to shares in the Company are held by “transacting shareholders” (as defined in the Act).

EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION

In accordance with section 211(1) (g) of the Companies Act 1993 the remuneration and other benefits in excess of $100,000 paid to current 
and former employees is reported below. 

Total remuneration includes salary plus any benefits (e.g. subsidised medical insurance and superannuation contributions) including related tax, 
received in the capacity as an employee and excludes any contractual termination settlements. Company vehicles are provided for business 
purposes to some employees and are not included in the remuneration calculation.

Remuneration $NZ # of Employees – Group Remuneration $NZ # of Employees – Group

100,000 – 110,000 40 210,001 – 220,000 2

110,001 – 120,000 33 220,001 – 230,000 3

120,001 – 130,000 27 230,001 – 240,000 2

130,001 – 140,000 12 250,001 – 260,000 1

140,001 – 150,000 21 260,001 – 270,000 1

150,001 – 160,000 10 270,001 – 280,000 1

160,001 – 170,000 9 310,001 – 320,000 1

170,001 – 180,000 6 320,001 – 330,000 1

180,001 – 190,000 6 470,001 – 480,000 1

190,001 – 200,000 2 910,001 – 920,000 1

200,001 – 210,000 1
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2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Group Sales Volumes tonnes 1,611,000 1,490,000 1,724,000 1,754,000 1,620,000

Turnover $000 915,213 877,796 920,973 892,795 837,462

$/tonne $568 $589 $534 $509 $517 

Profits

Gross Trading result $000 88,151 102,186 98,027 80,966 35,086

$/tonne $55 $69 $57 $46 $22 

Group profit retained $000  20,532  17,943  6,093  (14,840) (18,091)

– after distributions, impairment provision,  
inventory write down and including minority  
interest retentions in subsidiary companies

Cashflow

From operations (prior to rebate payment) $000 65,320 150,410 135,723 106,091 85,515

Capital and investment expenditure (net) $000 72,750 21,903 49,709 44,519 56,752

Distributions to Shareholders

Rebates paid or proposed $000 43,878 61,659 75,358 72,407 30,433

Dividends paid or proposed $000 3,445 3,581 3,787 3,963 –

Dividend per share cps 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 –

Rebate per tonne $/tonne  $40.00  $60.83  $60.83  $55.83  $25.00 

Dividend – gross per quota tonne $/tonne  $4.29  $4.17  $4.17  $4.17  – 

Combined distribution – gross equivalent* $/tonne  $44.29  $65.00  $65.00  $60.00  $25.00 

* Rebate and gross dividend equivalent  
for a fully paid shareholder

Analysis of Shareholders’ Equity

Number of shareholders 18,239 18,317 18,827 19,253 19,280

Shares on issue 000 34,500 35,812 37,872 39,627 41,239

Nominal share value $  $7.50  $7.50  $8.10  $8.10  $8.10 

Share quota per tonne 30 30 30 30 30

Investment per quota tonne $ 225.00 225.00 243.00 243.00 243.00

Co-op shareholders’ equity $000 362,938 403,357 420,610 435,429 406,552

Group shareholders’ equity $000 375,403 404,323 420,610 435,429 406,552

Group equity ratio 64.2% 71.2% 70.9% 80.4% 80.6%

Net asset backing per share $  $10.52  $11.26  $11.11  $10.99  $9.86 

Assets

Total Assets $000 584,666 567,603 593,173 541,874 504,359

Working Capital $000 196,636 214,175 198,893 185,293 134,053

Ratio of Current Assets to Current Liabilities 2.8 3.2 2.5 2.8 2.4

Stock Turn 3.8 3.9 4.4 4.1 3.9
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

INTRODUCTION

Ballance Agri-Nutrients Limited is a significant company in the  
New Zealand agricultural industry, supplying about half of the national 
solid fertiliser demand as well as other farm nutrient products, advice  
and services.

The Company is a farmer owned co-operative with approximately 
19,280 shareholders who are also customers. The Board and 
management follow best practice corporate governance principles 
and processes suited to the requirements of a co-operative company 
and its shareholders.

The Board is committed to acting with integrity and expects high 
standards of behaviour and accountability from all of its Directors  
and employees. 

The Board’s primary objectives are the creation of shareholder value 
through execution of appropriate strategies and ensuring effective use  
of Company resources in providing customer satisfaction and helping  
New Zealand farmers to farm more profitably and sustainably. 

The Company will be a good employer and a responsible  
corporate citizen.

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible to shareholders for directing the 
management of their co-operative through participation in the 
development of strategies, objectives and key policies.

Day-to-day running of the Company is delegated to the Chief 
Executive, and this is monitored by the Board to ensure business 
is carried out within the agreed framework.

The Board and its Code of Conduct is governed by the Company’s 
Constitution and Board Charter which outline the Board’s functions 
and operating procedures. Separate charters are established for most 
major sub-committees. 

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is committed to the principle that it should regularly verify 
that the Company has appropriate processes in place to identify and 
manage potential and relevant risks. 

A formal risk management process operates with the Board routinely 
monitoring those risks identified as potentially having 
a material impact on the Company.

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

The composition of the Ballance Board is reflective of the 
co-operative status of the Company. 

The constitution provides for six elected Directors from two wards, 
plus a maximum of three additional Directors appointed by the Board. 

Two Elected Directors retire by rotation each three years and if more 
than one valid nomination is received for a vacancy an election is 
conducted with results confirmed at the shareholder Annual Meeting. 
Eligible retiring Directors can seek re-election. 

Elected Directors must be shareholders of the Company through 
the quota shareholding of their farming enterprises with this interest 
declared and insider protocols applied at all times. 

There are no Executive Directors.

APPOINTED DIRECTORS

The Ballance constitution provides for the board to appoint a 
maximum of three additional directors but does not distinguish 
between independent and non-independent directors. 

Appointed Directors are selected based on a determined skill-set that 
will complement the existing board. Currently each of the appointed 
positions is filled. Appointment is for an agreed term 
and is reconfirmed annually.

The Company considers the Appointed Directors do not have a direct 
or indirect interest or relationship that could reasonably influence, in a 
material way, the Directors’ decisions in relation to the Company.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Chief Executive and the Chairman prepare a meeting agenda. 
Any member of the Board may request the addition of an item to the 
agenda. The Board met on ten occasions in the financial year ended  
31 May 2016. The length of meetings is usually one day, extending 
to two days for meetings with special business, including, the annual 
strategic plan development and the annual shareholder meeting. 
Teleconference meetings are conducted in addition as required.

Directors also represent the Company at numerous shareholder 
information meetings, major sponsored events including the Ballance 
Farm Environment Awards regional and national final events, at 
regional and national field days, at important industry and supporting 
industry events, and in making submissions to Government and other  
regulatory authorities.

BOARD REVIEW

Under a defined process regular reviews are conducted of the 
performance of individual Directors and the Board as a whole. This 
includes a confidential performance appraisal of each Director during 
each three-year term by all Board members with the Chairman 
responsible for discussing results with the Directors being assessed.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Two Board committees assist with governance and help guide 
effective decision making. They have terms of reference, reviewed 
annually, and report to the Board.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four Directors and cannot be chaired  
by the Board Chairman. The current Chairman is Appointed Director  
John Harvey. The Committee convene meetings as required to ensure 
coverage of their terms of reference. 

It is Group policy to ensure that audit independence is maintained 
so that external financial reporting is reliable and credible. The policy 
covers non-audit services provided by the external auditors and their 
fees and billings. 

The Audit Committee is responsible for:

•	 ensuring the quality and integrity of Group accountancy 
practices, policies and controls

•	 advising on the appointment of the external auditor

•	 reviewing audits of the Group’s financial statements by  
external auditors

•	 overseeing the Group’s internal audit and risk management 
programmes to ensure all key risks to the organisation are 
identified, assessed and mitigated

•	 reviewing any non-audit work carried out by the Company’s 
auditors and assesses auditor independence.

At least once a year, the Chairman and Directors on this Committee 
meet with the external auditors privately without the presence of 
Company executives.
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If required, the Committee has the power to seek any information to 
from employees to do its work and to obtain independent legal or 
other professional advice. In circumstances where a Director was to 
obtain separate advice from that obtained on behalf of the group that 
advice would normally be provided to all Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three directors, and 
is currently chaired by appointed Director Kim Ellis.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for:

•	 reviewing the Chief Executive’s performance annually and 
determines his remuneration

•	 approving the remuneration of the Chief Executive’s direct 
reports and any annual incentive payment targets

•	 setting the overall salary review level for the company

•	 ensuring succession plans are in place for the Chief Executive 
and the position’s direct reports.

Any proposal for significant change in company-wide remuneration 
policies and programmes is dealt with by the full Board. The Committee 
convene meetings as required to ensure coverage of their terms  
of reference.

Shareholder Committee

The Shareholder Committee is responsible for reviewing fees paid 
to Directors and if any change is proposed, it makes appropriate 
recommendation to shareholders at the Annual Meeting. 

The Committee has three members elected by Shareholders from 
the two wards. It met once during the year and obtains independent 
advice on matters relevant to Director remuneration.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

Ballance places considerable importance on communicating with  
our shareholders.

Regular publications covering company activities, co-operative affairs 
and scientific advice are distributed and made available on  
our website.

An annual review with highlights of the financial performance is 
distributed to shareholders, and the full annual report is posted 
on the company website, with hard copies available on request. 
Shareholders may raise matters for discussion at Annual Meetings 
and have the ultimate control in corporate governance by voting 
Directors on or off the Board.

CONTINUOUS DISCLOSURE

Ballance is not a listed Company and is not governed by the NZX 
continuous disclosure rules.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Ballance is committed to protecting all people – including employees, 
contractors, visitors, customers and the general community – from 
injury or illness as a result of our operations.

We take health and safety seriously and demonstrate this through  
our Zero Harm policy. We believe that no business activity should take 
priority over health and safety and that all incidents are preventable. 
While Directors and management have ultimate accountability,  
every employee of the Company has a responsibility for health 
and safety and we reinforce this in our induction programmes and 
employee briefings.

We maintain and continually improve our health and safety 
management system, accurately reporting and recording all incidents 
and accidents, and ensuring actions are taken to prevent similar 
incidents or accidents occurring.

The Board routinely monitors performance and developments 
in the area of health and safety. Management reports monthly 
to the Board on safety performance, key performance measures 
benchmarked to international best practice, trends and any 
continuous improvement initiatives introduced.

ENVIRONMENT

Ballance strives to ensure that our leadership, products, services, 
advice and operational responsibilities meet the highest  
environmental standards.

To achieve this, the Company has developed and implements 
environmental policies supported by a comprehensive environmental 
management system. It identifies environmental issues, and ensures 
they are well and consistently managed and support the continual 
improvement of operations to minimise use of resources and  
reduce waste.

The Company’s research and development objectives are in 
alignment with its environmental objectives, with a programme of 
work underway aimed at increasing the productive capacity of the 
primary sector while reducing environmental impacts.

Environmental advocacy is a core function of the Company with 
Ballance working to advocate strongly on behalf of farmers in relation 
to government regulations on use of natural resources, with particular 
emphasis on nutrient management.

The fertiliser recommendations given by employees for the use of 
products sold by the Company are subject to a random audit. The 
audits ensure recommendations and nutrient advice is of the highest 
standard and that employees receive appropriate training and 
support. Audit outcomes are reported to the Board.

Management provides a monthly report to the Board on resource 
consent compliance and key environmental performance measures. 
The Board is routinely updated on environmental legislation, regulation 
and regional plans as these affect the Company’s operations and the 
use of its products by shareholders and customers.

company directory
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BALLANCE AGRI-NUTRIENTS LIMITED

Board of Directors

David Peacocke – Chairman and Director (North Island)

Albert Brantley – Appointed Director

Kim Ellis – Appointed Director

John Harvey – Appointed Director

Gray Baldwin – Director (North Island)

Oliver Saxton – Director (North Island)

Sarah von Dadelszen – Director (North Island)

Andrew Morrison – Director (South Island)

Murray Taggart – Director (South Island)

REGISTERED OFFICE

161 Hewletts Road, Mount Maunganui

SOLICITORS

Russell McVeagh 
PO Box 8, Auckland

Sharp Tudhope 
Private Bag, Tauranga

BANKERS

ANZ Bank New Zealand Limited
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BALLANCE AGRI-NUTRIENTS LIMITED 
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Private Bag 12503, Tauranga 
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Email reception@ballance.co.nz 
Freephone customer line 0800 222 090
Website www.ballance.co.nz

BALLANCE AGRI-NUTRIENTS LIMITED  
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PO Box 244, Whangarei 
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Fax 09 470 0909 
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BALLANCE AGRI-NUTRIENTS (KAPUNI) LIMITED

PO Box 439, Hawera 
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AG HUB LIMITED
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Email info@aghub.co.nz 
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SEALES WINSLOW LIMITED

Corner McRae and Anderson Streets, Morrinsville
Phone 07 889 6566
Fax 07 889 4025
Email sales@sealeswinslow.co.nz 
Website www.sealeswinslow.co.nz

SUPER AIR LIMITED

Rukuhia, RD2, Hamilton 
Phone 07 843 6066 
Fax 07 848 9051 
Email reception@superair.co.nz 
Website www.superair.co.nz
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